
 
 
 
 
A Meeting of the COUNCIL will be held virtually on 
THURSDAY 19 NOVEMBER 2020 AT 7.00 PM 
 
 
 

 
Susan Parsonage 
Chief Executive 
Published on 11 November 2020 
 
Note:  The Council has made arrangements under the 
Coronavirus Act 2020 to hold this meeting virtually via 
Microsoft Teams.  The meeting can be watched live using 
the following link:  https://youtu.be/YtoGuVvIQ5g  
 
This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website. 

 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control. 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/YtoGuVvIQ5g


 
 

Our Vision 
 

A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business 
 

 

Enriching Lives 

 Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full 
potential, regardless of their background.  

 Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to 
complement an active lifestyle.  

 Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which 
people feel part of.  

 Support growth in our local economy and help to build business. 

Safe, Strong, Communities 

 Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people. 

 Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.  

 Nurture communities and help them to thrive. 

 Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.  

A Clean and Green Borough 

 Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.  

 Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas. 

 Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling. 

 Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.  

Right Homes, Right Places 

 Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.  

 Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to 
grow.  

 Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.  

 Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.  

Keeping the Borough Moving 
 Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.  

 Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.  

 Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure. 

 Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible 
public transport with good network links.  

Changing the Way We Work for You 
 Be relentlessly customer focussed. 

 Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around 
you.  

 Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately 
as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.  

 Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and 
customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.  

 



 

To: The Members of Wokingham Borough Council 
 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

WARD SUBJECT 
PAGE 
NO. 

    
61.    APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence 
 

    
62.    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

To confirm the Minutes of the Council Meeting held 
on 17 September 2020. 

15 - 42 

    
63.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest 
 

    
64.    MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

To receive any announcements by the Mayor 
 

    
65.    PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

To answer any public questions 
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of 
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.  
 
The Council welcomes questions from members of 
the public about the work of the Council 
 
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can 
relate to general issues concerned with the work of 
the Council or an item which is on the Agenda for this 
meeting.  For full details of the procedure for 
submitting questions please contact the Democratic 
Services Section on the numbers given below or go 
to www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions 
 

 

65.1 None Specific Daniel Hinton has asked the Executive Member for 
Children's Services the following question: 
 
Question 
We are aware of the continuing improvement 
programme in relation to children with Special 
Educational Needs and Disabilities.  How has the 
production of Education Health and Care Plans 
improved as part of this programme? 
 

 

65.2 None Specific Jackie Rance has asked the Executive Member for 
Children's Services the following question: 
 
Question 
Can the Lead Member for Children’s Services advise 
us on activities to support schools as they have 

 

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions


 

reopened at the beginning of September? 
 

65.3 None Specific Anne Chadwick has asked the Executive Member for 
Children's Services the following question: 
 
Question 
I've been very concerned to read on social media 
about children going hungry in half-term because 
their parents struggle to feed them lunch. Would the 
Executive member tell me what the Council did during 
half-term and does the Executive member share my 
concern? 
 

 

65.4 None Specific Philip Cunnington has asked the Executive Member 
for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Services the following 
question: 
 
Question 
Can you tell me the latest situation with Covid-19 
within Wokingham?  
 

 

65.5 Maiden Erlegh Norman Jorgensen has asked the Executive Member 
for Environment and Leisure the following question: 
 
Question 
At the time of the heavy rain in October I spoke to 
residents affected and observed the flooding at 
Egremont Drive, Earley. The culvert and bushes at 
that point makes a restriction to water flow in the 
stream which causes the flooding. I wrote to you and 
the Council at the time, asking that the restriction is 
removed so that residents are not flooded every time 
there is heavy rain. I was pleased to hear from an 
Executive Member that works are planned. Please 
will you provide me with an update? 

 

    
66.    PETITIONS 

To receive any petitions which Members or members 
of the public wish to present. 

 

    
67.   None Specific PRESENTATION BY THE CHIEF CONSTABLE 

AND THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 
To receive a presentation from the Chief Constable of 
Thames Valley Police, John Campbell, and the Police 
and Crime Commissioner, Anthony Stansfeld. 
  
The presentation is expected to be approximately 20 
minutes in duration, after which there will be an 
opportunity for Member questions of no more than 10 
minutes in duration. 

 

  
 

  



 

68.   None Specific CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
To receive a report from the Constitution Review 
Working Group setting out proposed changes to the 
Constitution. 
 
RECOMMENDATION That Council agree the 
following changes to the Constitution, as 
recommended by the Constitution Review Working 
Group: 
 
1) Section 4.1.1 Policy Framework be amended as 

set out in Appendix 1 and explained in Paragraph 
1 of the report; 

 
2) Section 4.2.17 Record of Attendance be 

amended as set out in Paragraph 2 of the report;  
 
3) the Virtual Meeting Protocol (an Appendix to 

Chapter 4) be amended as set out in Paragraph 
3 of the report; 

 
4) the Virtual Meeting Protocol be amended as set 

out in Paragraph 4 of the report; 
 
5) Section 5.1.9.2 be amended as set out in 

Paragraph 5 of the report; 
 
6) Section 6.1.2.1 Substitutes be amended as set 

out in Paragraph 6 of the report; 
 
7) the Local Code of Corporate Governance 

(Appendix 2 to the report and explained in 
Paragraph 7 of the report) be attached as an 
appendix to Chapter 9 Ethics and Corporate 
Governance; 

 
8) that Section 13.3.1.1  Procurement Business 

Case (including options appraisal) be amended 
as set out in Paragraph 8 of the report. 

43 - 66 

    
69.    MEMBER QUESTION TIME 

To answer any member questions 
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for Members to 
ask questions submitted under Notice 
 
Any questions not dealt with within the allotted time 
will be dealt with in a written reply 
 
 
 
 

 



 

69.1 None Specific Guy Grandison has asked the Executive Member for 
Children's Services the following question: 
 
Question 
What is the Council doing to allow children and their 
parents to see their prospective schools before 
applying for their school choices in the unusual 
circumstances of this year? 
 

 

69.2 Shinfield South Jim Frewin has asked the Executive Member for 
Highways and Transport the following question: 
 
Question 
I welcome the recently proposed highway changes to 
Rose Street, a proactive initiative to reduce 
pedestrian risk. I believe this is a preventative 
initiative and thankfully not as the result of accidents.  
 
Grazeley resident, Simon Cooper, has spoken at 
several WBC meetings including Feb 2020 Council.   
 
He told us about: 

 2 fatalities (Jan 17, Jan 20) where vehicles 
crashed into his property 

 Multiple other non-fatal crashes 
 The effects on his family and the Grazeley 

community 
 His frustration at the lack of any action.   

 
Nearly 4 years since the first fatal accident, WBC 
have gathered multiple sets of data, the same data 
after both fatalities. Frustrated Simon has also 
captured large amounts of data and video examples.  
  
Since the first fatal accident a range of Executive 
Members, Senior Council and Senior TVP Officers 
have offered kind words of condolence, support and 
sympathy to the Coopers and the bereaved families.  
 
The reality is however nothing has changed despite 
this stretch of highway that includes a school and 
community hall.  My question is why is the proactive 
and protective approach to resident safety being 
demonstrated by the Rose Street initiative, not being 
applied across the whole Borough?  
 

 

69.3 None Specific Alison Swaddle has asked the Executive Member for 
Resident Services, Communications and Emissions 
the following question: 
 
 
 

 



 

Question 
Professor Paul Chatterton of the University of Leeds 
and a leading national expert on climate change, has 
already praised our local Climate Emergency Action 
Plan as an example of best practise nationally, and 
has said that we are on the right track with our focus 
areas and actions.  
 
What, therefore is the point of engaging a vast 
number of our residents in running a wide reaching 
Citizen’s Assembly in Wokingham Borough?  
 
Surely both the evidence presented and therefore the 
recommendations received will be similar or identical 
to those already run by other local authorities 
nationally and, most notably by the Government via 
Climate Assembly UK? 
 

69.4 None Specific Graham Howe has asked the Leader of the Council 
the following question: 
 
Question 
The Leader of the Opposition has recently been 
sending a leaflet to homes across the Borough 
claiming that the Council’s debt is £700 million. Could 
the Leader of the Council set out what our debt 
situation actually is, including where borrowing is 
generating revenue income to pay for our vital 
services? 

 

    
70.    MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD 

MATTERS 
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to 
ask questions in relation to the latest circulated 
volume of Minutes of Meetings and Ward Matters 

 

    
71.    STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE 

COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS AND DEPUTY 
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 
To receive any statements by the Leader of the 
Council, Executive Members and Deputy Executive 
Members. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.23 the total 
time allocated to this item shall not exceed 20 
minutes, and no Member shall speak for more than 5 
minutes 

 

   
 
 
 
 

 



 

72.    MOTIONS 
To consider any motions 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.11.2 a 
maximum period of 30 minutes will be allowed for 
each Motion to be moved, seconded and debated, 
including dealing with any amendments.  At the expiry 
of the 30-minute period debate will cease 
immediately, the mover of the Motion or amendment 
will have the right of reply before the Motion or 
amendment is put to the vote 
 

 

72.1 None Specific Motion 444 submitted by Maria Gee 
 

A carer with a buggy, a blind or partially sighted child, 
a teenager who has difficulty processing everyday 
sensory information, and a mobility scooter user, all 
use our pavements to access our shops, services 
and businesses. All residents should be able to move 
unhindered along our streets, without having to 
negotiate unnecessary pavement obstructions, such 
as pavement advertising. Unhindered access for all 
our residents will encourage more use of our shops 
and services and invigorate our town centres, 
benefitting businesses.  

 
Residents look to us as a Council to change policies, 
procedures and practices that are discriminatory, and 
to take reasonable steps to enable disabled people 
and others with protected characteristics to avoid 
substantial disadvantages caused by physical 
features. 

 
Under the Public Sector Equality Duty, public 
authorities are required to have due regard to the 
need to eliminate discrimination. Not taking action on 
street obstructions may also breach the United 
Nations Conventions on the Rights of Persons with a 
Disability. 
 
It is not an option to leave things as they are, which is 
a one page guidance document for traders that is not 
resourced or enforced and which pays scant regard 
to equalities and human rights responsibilities, 
highways and road traffic legislation, planning law 
and guidance, and ignores our local context including 
our conservation areas. 

 
This Council resolves to: 

 Consult with local charities, voluntary 
organisations, residents’ groups and business 
representatives to develop policies, 

 



 

procedures and practices with respect to (i) 
pavement advertising and (ii) street and café 
furniture, to eliminate unlawful discrimination 
against residents with protected 
characteristics. 

 Develop, working cross party, a street charter 
by no later than 31 December 2020, that puts 
a ‘clear highway’ policy at the heart of 
decision-making and specifically addresses 
each of the above two areas of street 
obstruction.  

 Develop, working cross party, policies, 
practices and procedures, that are resourced 
and enforced, no later than 31 March 2021 that 
specifically address the above two areas of 
street obstruction. 

 Implement and monitor the adopted policies, 
procedures and practices from 1 April 2021, 
report on their successes or failures on an 
annual basis, and make improvements. 

 
72.2 None Specific Motion 445 submitted by Gary Cowan 

 
The continued failure of recent Council meetings to 
conclude the agenda business suggests that the 
existing democratic process has failed. As a direct 
result of this Wokingham Borough's Residents and 
their Borough Council elected Members have been let 
down very badly. To correct this serious democratic 
failure and get the Council back on track this Council 
must immediately programme in as many additional 
Council meetings as is required to get Council 
business up to date.  
 

 

72.3 None Specific Motion 446 submitted by Clive Jones 
 
There needs to be a fundamental change in how we 
generate and consume energy in all aspects of our 
lives. Both electricity generation and distribution are 
undergoing rapid evolution, in both shape and scale. 
The distribution grid, must now cope with power flows 
in both directions.  In scale, electrification of heat and 
transport will require a quadrupling of electricity 
capacity. Local, community-based energy schemes 
can make a significant contribution to addressing both 
issues and encourage a sense of local empowerment 
to tackle climate change.  
 
Community schemes encourage local generation and 
storage to match local demand thus relieving 
pressure on the grid. Local schemes would be given 
new impetus and be able to contribute more 

 



 

renewable energy if local people could buy their 
electricity directly from local suppliers. But the 
disproportionate cost of meeting regulatory approvals 
makes it impossible to be a local energy supplier at a 
local scale and so, under the current system, this 
local energy gets sold back to the central grid.  
 
The Local Electricity Bill is a private members’ bill 
with cross-party support that was introduced 
unopposed in June 2020. If this Bill was passed in 
Parliament it would give the energy regulator, 
OFGEM, a duty to create a Right to Local Supply. 
This would enable local community energy groups to 
achieve their vision of supplying generated energy 
back to the local area, help us as a Council to meet 
our carbon reduction aspirations for the Borough, and 
also bring multiple benefits to the local community. It 
is supported by many stakeholders, local authorities, 
and town councils and currently has the backing of 
208 MPs.  
 
Council Agrees to: 
 

 Resolve to support the Bill.  

 Authorise the Leader to contact our MPs to 
discuss their support for the Bill and how they 
can enable its passage into law.  

 Authorise the Chief Executive to write to the 
Minister of State for Business Energy and 
Industrial Strategy, supporting the aims of the 
Bill and asking for these aims to be taken into 
account in the forthcoming Energy White 
Paper. 

 
72.4 None Specific Motion 447 submitted by Gregor Murray 

 
Building on our commitment to planting 250,000 new 
trees, this Council commits to achieving Tree Cities of 
the World status for our Borough as part of the 
creation of a Borough wide Tree Strategy. 
 
This will be done by: 
 
1) Maintaining clear responsibility within the 
Council for the care of trees across our Borough. 
 
2) Agreeing a policy for the care and 
management of our forests and trees across the 
Borough. This must include standards for tree care, 
where and when they apply and penalties for 
noncompliance. 
 

 



 

3) Work with external partners to create and 
maintain an inventory of the local tree resource so 
that effective long-term planning for planting, care 
and removal can be established. 
 
4) Setting aside an annual budget for the 
implementation of the tree management strategy and 
management plan. 
 
5) Hold an annual celebration of our Borough’s 
trees and acknowledge the residents schools, 
charities and Council staff that contribute to our city 
tree programme. 
 
6) Create a ‘Garden Forest’ program to allow 
residents the opportunity to plant some of our 
250,000 new tree commitment in their own gardens. 
 
7) Develop a continuous education process 
aimed at informing residents of the importance of 
trees, tree planting and tree protection and how best 
to care for the trees in their own gardens and 
communities. 
 

72.5 None Specific Motion 448 submitted by Prue Bray 

This Council recognises that the economic impact of 
the continuing pandemic is likely to lead to further 
increases in child poverty and notes the very 
welcome commitment from Councils of different 
political persuasions in to guarantee free school meal 
provision for school holidays until at least Easter 
2021, 

This Council therefore supports the calls by the Child 
Food Poverty Task Force, supported by Marcus 
Rashford and many leading food suppliers and 
producers, for: 

 The expansion of free school meals provision 

to every child whose family is in receipt of 

Universal Credit or equivalent, or with a low-

income and no recourse to public funds. 

 That provision be made for food vouchers to 

cover school holidays and periods of 

lockdown for all families in receipt of Universal 

Credit or with low-income and no recourse to 

public funds. 

 That Healthy Start vouchers should be 

increased in value to £4.25, and expanded to 

be made available to all those in receipt of 

 



 

Universal Credit or with a low-income and no 

recourse to public funds. 

This Council therefore resolves  

a) to write to the Secretary of State for Education 
and the Chancellor to call for:  

1. Extending eligibility for free school meals to 
every pupil whose parents or guardians are 
in receipt of Universal Credit 

2. Food vouchers for every one of those 
pupils in every school holiday and during 
any period of lockdown 

3. Extending eligibility for free school meals to 
pupils from low-income families whose 
parents or guardians have no recourse to 
public funds and destitute asylum seekers 
under s4 of the Immigration and Asylum 
Act 1999 

And 

b) To cover the cost of Free School Meals for 
those entitled to them during the Christmas 
2020 and February 2021 school holidays as a 
stop gap in the absence of Government 
support. 

72.6 None Specific Motion 449 submitted by Andy Croy 
 
Council believes the Executive should commission a 
Citizens’ Assembly on the Climate Emergency. 
 
A Citizens’ Assembly on the Wokingham Borough 
response to the Climate Emergency is required to 
address the hard choices which need to be made if 
the Borough is to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030. 
 
To be effective and credible, the Citizens’ Assembly 
must be independent of the Executive and political 
parties. 
 
The Climate Emergency Action Plan (CEAP) 
approved by Council on 23rd July 2020 has a 
significant gap between the carbon savings required 
and the carbon savings which are identified in the 
CEAP. 
 
Council also notes the serious criticisms of the CEAP 
contained in the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Task and Finish Group full report on the CEAP 

 



 

presented to the Executive on 29th October 2020. 
 
Council also supports the following statements on the 
Local Government Association and UK Parliament 
websites: 
 

The Local Government Association website 
states: 
“A citizens' assembly is a collection of 
individuals selected to be representative of the 
wider population”. 
 
The UK Parliament website identifies several 
key features of a Citizens Assembly including 
“assembly members are representative of the 
wider population” and “independent facilitation: 
the assembly is not facilitated by the 
organisation that commissioned the assembly.” 
 

Links to these sources and other resources can be 
found here: 
https://www.wokinghamlabourparty.org/green-
vision/why-we-need-a-citizens-assembly-on-the-
climate-emergency/ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Anne Hunter Democratic and  Electoral Services Lead Specialist 
Tel 0118 974 6051 
Email anne.hunter@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF 
THE COUNCIL 

HELD ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2020 FROM 7.00 PM TO 10.20 PM 
Members Present 
Councillors: Malcolm Richards (Mayor), Keith Baker (Deputy Mayor), Parry Batth, 
Rachel Bishop-Firth, Laura Blumenthal, Chris Bowring, Shirley Boyt, Prue Bray, 
Rachel Burgess, Jenny Cheng, UllaKarin Clark, Stephen Conway, Gary Cowan, 
Andy Croy, Richard Dolinski, Carl Doran, Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager, Paul Fishwick, 
Jim Frewin, Maria Gee, Guy Grandison, Charlotte Haitham Taylor, John Halsall, 
David Hare, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Emma Hobbs, Graham Howe, Clive Jones, 
Pauline Jorgensen, Sarah Kerr, Dianne King, Abdul Loyes, Tahir Maher, Charles Margetts, 
Adrian Mather, Ken Miall, Andrew Mickleburgh, Stuart Munro, Gregor Murray, 
Barrie Patman, Angus Ross, Daniel Sargeant, Imogen Shepherd-DuBey, 
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, Caroline Smith, Wayne Smith, Bill Soane and Alison Swaddle 
 
54. MINUTE'S SILENCE  
The Mayor informed Council that Frank Browne, who was the Leader of Council between 
2002-2008, and Helen Power who was elected to the Council in 2018 but had had to step 
down in 2019 due to ill health, had both passed away recently.  Stephen Conway and 
Pauline Jorgensen paid tribute to Frank Browne and Helen Power and a Minute’s silence 
was held. 
 
55. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were submitted from John Kaiser, Simon Weeks and Oliver Whittle. 
 
56. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 23 July 2020 were confirmed as a 
correct record subject to the following amendment and will be signed by the Mayor at a 
future date.  
 
Jim Frewin commented that with regards to the change to the polling district in Shinfield 
South item, he had raised concerns that it was the first time that he had heard of it, and 
that he had made a request for the Ward councillors to work more closely together 
irrespective of political party. 
 
57. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
Emma Hobbs declared a Personal Interest in Item 60.1, Motion on the Council Tax 
Protocol, on the grounds that she had been invited to join the Citizens Advice Bureau.  
  
Andy Croy declared a Personal Interest in Item 60.1, Motion on the Council Tax Protocol, 
on the grounds that his mother was campaign manager at the Citizens Advice Bureau.  
 
Maria Gee declared a Personal Interest in Item 60.1, Motion on the Council Tax Protocol, 
on the grounds that she was a Trustee of the Citizens Advice Bureau. She indicated that 
she would not participate in the debate of the Motion or vote on this Motion. 
 
58. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
The Mayor informed Members that he had undertaken a number of face-to-face Mayoral 
engagements, adhering to the Government guidance around Covid 19 as he did so.  
 
 
 

15

Agenda Item 62.



 

 
 

59. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited members of the public to 
submit questions to the appropriate Members. 
 
59.1 Peter Humphreys asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport 

the following question:  
 
The pedestrian controlled traffic lights in Wiltshire Road were recently replaced on an 
almost like-for-like basis bar two features.  One was low energy bulbs; the other was the 
addition of a proximity sensor.  Fomites are a significant factor in the spread of Covid-19 
so anything that obviates the need to push a button to stop the traffic is obviously a good 
idea.  But the Council’s Highway’s Department disagree for although paying for this 
potentially life-saving feature they are refusing to activate it, forcing pedestrians to touch a 
potentially infected button. 
 
The Executive Member for Highways is fully aware of this and had chosen to support the 
bizarre policy decision.  Would she please explain why her Department won’t use the 
sensors which taxpayer’s money have funded, the consequence of which is promoting the 
spread of the disease? 
 
Answer 
The pedestrian controlled traffic lights in Wiltshire Road were recently upgraded to utilise 
low energy lamps, pedestrian detection equipment and a new traffic signal controller 
containing improved communication and management software.  The detection equipment 
is in place and functioning, so as to extend the green man phase when slower walkers or 
groups of pedestrians are crossing the road and a longer stage is required.  
 
The Council did not, however, introduce measures that removed the need for push button 
demand for crossing completely, since the need for this facility to be retained was 
considered to be greater at that time and a review of the potential for this measure was 
scheduled to follow the introduction of more permanent active travel measures to support 
walking and cycling.   
 
However, as a result of the gradual removal of Covid-supporting measures in the town 
centre the need for automatic detection remains low.  The use of a push button to call the 
pedestrian stage at a crossing is deemed to create no greater health hazard for 
pedestrians than their use of cashpoint machines in banks, payment machines in shops 
and door handles to public buildings, all of which members of the public are faced with 
using when visiting the town and for which their personal hygiene and Covid prevention 
actions should provide sufficient protection. 
 
I should also point out that the June 2020 European Centre for  
Disease Control report on Covid transmission, which said that indirect transmission from 
fomites, which is things such as crossings, is considered possible but so far no 
occurrences have been documented.  Handwashing I would say remains the best solution.  
The only way you can get Covid through touching things is if you then touch your mouth, 
nose or eyes.  It is not transmitted through the skin. 
 
We will review this decision should there be any deterioration in the Covid situation that 
would require such measures to be introduced in line with government guidance. 
 
 

16



 

 
 

Supplementary Question: 
As we know from the media, there are different views on science and it is never black and 
white.  For instance, the prestigious journal the New England Medical Journal, has said 
that fomites can be a problem, and hence that it is why you if you go for example, down to 
a supermarket, they spray all the trolleys that you are going to touch, and other surfaces.  
That is why when I go to my physiotherapist; they have a 10 minute gap between 
appointments so that they can spray everything possible that the last person may have 
touched to prevent disease.  In the well-known phrase ‘every little helps’ why is the Council 
refusing to actually activate this facility, that they paid for, and it just seems ridiculous that 
you are not willing to help.  We are never going to prove where an infection comes from 
but surely, you should have it on your conscience to try and prevent infections, so why will 
you not do it?  
 
Supplementary Answer: 
We will follow the government guidance and we will follow the professional advice from the 
Disease Control people, and the information at the moment is that what we are doing is 
quite sufficient.  
 
60. PETITIONS  
The following Member presented a petition in relation to the matter indicated. 
 
The Mayor’s decision as to the action to be taken is set out against the petition. 
 

Sarah Kerr Sarah Kerr presented a petition containing 47 
signatures relating to the installation of a 
pedestrian crossing on Barkham Road. 
 
To be passed to the Executive Member for 
Highways and Transport 
 

 
61. TENANTS' CHARTER - MODERNISING THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE IN 

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - 1 YEAR ON UPDATE REPORT  
The Council considered an update report on progress over the past year towards 
achieving the aspirations of the Tenants’ Charter.  
 
The report emphasised the importance of the Council and tenants working in partnership 
to modernise housing services over the next decade.  This would deliver improved 
satisfaction levels, increase efficiency and support the Council’s aim to achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2030.  
 
Steve Bowers, Chairperson of the Tenant and Landlord Improvement Panel, thanked the 
involved tenants, the members of the Tenant and Landlord Improvement Panel (TLIP), the 
Housing team and all Councillors, for their work and support.   
 
He indicated that the lockdown had expedited the tenants and involved tenants move 
online.  It had not been possible to run community fun days this year due to the Covid 
restrictions, however, 7 community fun days had been held the previous year, which had 
been very well attended.  In future, the AGM would be held at a community fun day in 
order to better publicise it and to boost attendance.  
 

17



 

 
 

Andrew Mickleburgh was pleased that the report acknowledged the Borough’s ageing 
tenant population, and questioned how work around adaptions could be further improved.  
Steve Bowers commented that strides were already being made in this area. 
 
Daniel Sargeant congratulated TLIP on their work and commented that Wokingham 
Housing Limited, of which he was a Non-Executive Director, were keen to work with them. 
 
Prue Bray supported the Charter and thanked the involved tenants, who had been a 
pleasure to work with. 
 
Jim Frewin commented that the report was very readable and that he felt that some of the 
strategies, particularly customer service and some of the technology strategies, should be 
adopted in the Council’s wider customer experience.  
 
John Halsall thanked the tenants for the support they gave the Council.  He commented 
that the Council was committed to increasing its social and Council homes within the 
Borough. 
 
Bill Soane indicated that he attended some of the community fun days whilst he had been 
Mayor the previous year, and thanked the tenants for making him feel welcome.  
 
It was proposed by John Halsall and seconded by Daniel Sargeant that the 
recommendations within the report be approved. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was: 
 
RESOLVED That: 
 
1) the update report be noted and that the Council continue to work in partnership with 

tenants in order to achieve the aspirations in the Tenants Charter; 
 
2) a further review of progress relating to the Tenants’ Charter be carried out in 2021. 
 
62. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2019-20  
The Council considered the Treasury Management Outturn report for the 2019/20 financial 
year. 
 
The report summarised the treasury management operations carried out during 
2019/2020. It was presented for the purpose of monitoring and review, in accordance with 
the Council’s treasury management practices.  The report stated that the Council adhered 
to all agreed prudential indicators during 2019/2020.  This included ensuring the necessary 
liquidity to deliver on the day to day operations of the Council. 
 
Daniel Sargeant thanked the Finance Team for all their work.  He commented that external 
borrowing had risen as planned as the Council invested further in its ambitious long-term 
capital programme.  The investment properties had delivered a return of 5.11%, creating 
additional revenue. 
 
Rachel Burgess commented that whilst the document was essentially backward looking, 
one of the key graphs within the report, the borrowing versus assets value graph (Table 2), 
was forward looking.  The figures were based on the Medium Term Financial Plan and 
suggested that the debt levels were reducing as asset levels were retained at a constant 

18



 

 
 

level from 2023/24 onwards.  She expressed surprise that no reference had been made to 
the potential impact of Covid and the impact that this would have, for example, on asset 
forecasts.   In addition, she felt that the presentation of the expenditure of £5million last 
year on climate emergency was potentially misleading, and that much of this expenditure 
had been rebadged from other budgets. 
 
Clive Jones reiterated the concerns that the Liberal Democrat Group had about the 
Council’s rising debt levels and emphasised that levels had risen considerably over time.  
He stated that Covid 19 would have a major impact on the Council’s finances and 
reserves.  
 
Imogen Shepherd-Dubey felt that the report was misleading and did not address the 
potential impact of Covid 19 on capital projects and property values.  
 
Stuart Munro indicated that the Property Investment Strategy had been presented and 
explained to Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
Daniel Sargeant explained that the Treasury Management Outturn report was a backwards 
looking document and whilst he appreciated that Covid 19 would greatly impact on the 
Council’s finances, it was not the most appropriate document to reference this.  
 
It was proposed by Daniel Sargeant and seconded by John Halsall that the 
recommendations be agreed. 
 
Upon being put to the vote it was: 
 
RESOLVED That it be noted that: 
 
1) the Treasury Management Outturn report was presented to Audit Committee on 29th 

July 2020; 
 

2) the managed repayment of debt over time, which illustrates the increased 
borrowing required to fund key Council priorities which in turn generate income 
streams (to repay debt) and provides revenue funding for vital statutory services (as 
set out in the graph in Table 2 of the report); 

 
3) the asset value created through the Council’s capital investments compared to the 

debt required to generate the asset value (as set out in the graph in Table 2 of the 
report); 

 
4) the capital investments made in the Council’s priorities for its community, by 

category (as set out in Table 1 of the report); 
 

5) the Treasury Management report in Appendix A, that shows that all approved 
indicators have been adhered to and that prudent and safe management has been 
adhered to. 

 
63. CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION  
The Council considered a report from the Constitution Review Working Group which set 
out proposed changes to the Constitution. The proposals related to: 
 

19



 

 
 

 The Petition Protocol – clarifying the process, especially for those creating electronic 
petitions outside of the Council’s website; 

 

 The Council meeting – timing and order of business (30 minute time limit for business 
items); Motions without notice; Members’ responses to recorded votes; 

 

 Membership of the Wokingham Borough Wellbeing Board to include the Council’s 
Chief Executive; 

 

 Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policies, considered by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 29 July 2020. 

 
Stephen Conway was of the view that the recommendation regarding recorded votes was 
unnecessary.  
 
A number of Members felt that it was important that the Constitution Review Working 
Group again reviewed the Council meeting process to ensure that more of the Council 
agenda could be completed at each meeting.  
 
Andy Croy requested that recommendations 1, 3, 5 and 6 be voted on together and that 
separate votes be held on recommendations 2 and 4. 
 
It was proposed by John Halsall and seconded by Emma Hobbs that the 
recommendations in the report be agreed. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the following changes to the Constitution, as recommended by the 
Constitution Review Working Group be agreed: 
 
1) Section 3.5 Petition Protocol be amended as set out in Appendix 1 of the report and 

explained in Paragraph 1 of the report; 
 
2) Section 4.2.2.1 Timing and Order of Business be amended as set out in Paragraph 3 

of the report; 
 
3) Section 4.2.12 Motions Without Notice m) be amended as set out in Paragraph 4 of 

the report; 
 
4) Section 4.2.15.5 Recorded Vote be amended as set out in Paragraph 5 of the report; 
 
5) Section 4.4.23 Membership [Wokingham Borough Wellbeing Board] be amended as 

set out in Paragraph 6 of the report; 
 
6) Chapter 9.4 – Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy, Chapter 9.5 Whistleblowing Policy 

and Guidance, Chapter 9.6 Anti Bribery Policy, Chapter 9.7  Anti Money Laundering 
Policy, Chapter 9.8  Prosecution and Sanction Policy and Chapter 9.9  Acquisition of 
Communications Data and Use of Covert Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources Policy, be amended as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.  

 
 
 

20



 

 
 

64. UPDATE FROM THE VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE  
Chris Bowring, Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee, addressed the Council on the 
Committee’s review of its rules relating to public participation whilst meetings were held 
virtually.  
 
Following the 6 July Council meeting, the Planning Committee had undertaken discussions 
to enable public participation in virtual Planning Committee meetings.  Public speaking had 
been fully integrated into the most recent meeting and those wishing to speak under any of 
the category of public speaking would be welcome at future Planning Committee meetings. 
 
The possibility of hybrid Planning Committees, if and when government guidance and 
technical solutions, allowed, was being further explored.  He hoped that live streaming of 
the meetings would be retained in the future so far as possible. 
 
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey commented that she was pleased that the public were now 
able to participate fully in virtual Planning Committees. 
 
Angus Ross felt that it was the best way forwards but that matters should be kept under 
review. 
 
It was proposed by Chris Bowring and seconded by Angus Ross that the update be noted. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the update from the Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee be 
noted.  
 
65. MEMBER QUESTION TIME  
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited Members to submit questions 
to the appropriate Members 
 
65.1 Prue Bray asked the Executive Member for Children's Services the 

following question:  
 
Schools in the Borough have been in unprecedented turmoil due to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  This has not been helped by chaotic decision-making by the Government 
which has resulted in mixed messages and complete changes of mind on when children 
would be returning to school, what schools should do to accommodate them, and exam 
results.   
 
This turmoil is likely to continue for some time.  We may have future local hot spots which 
require schools to be closed temporarily for example.  Many activities which have 
previously been taken for granted will be more difficult, more expensive or impossible to 
deliver, such as school trips, presentation and parents’ evenings, fetes and sports days, 
school plays and concerts.  These difficulties even extend to ensuring children can travel 
to school safely. 
 
We also have to deal with further consequences of what has already happened – children 
taking public exams next year have had their learning disrupted;  those intending to go to 
university may not have the expected range of places available to them due to this year’s 
students taking up deferred offers, and we have yet to see what the impact of lockdown 
has been on children’s mental health and on other issues which affect them, such as 

21



 

 
 

domestic violence, and families with significantly reduced incomes as a result of job loss or 
pay reductions.   
 
What is the Council going to do to support schools, staff, pupils and parents during this 
academic year to minimise the detrimental impact of these issues on them? 
 
Answer 
The last academic year has been incredibly challenging for all schools including their staff, 
students and parents.  However, Wokingham has had some of the best performance in 
respect of maintaining school opening and attendance from March 2020 when schools 
were asked to close to most students. 
 
We have continued to work with schools and academies throughout the pandemic, 
providing advice, guidance and support in the light of national guidance as well as local 
learning.  This has included daily communication to all school senior leaders and directors 
and stakeholders, and bespoke responses where there have been issues or concerns 
related to potential outbreaks. 
 
We have worked closely with the Department for Education to inform and fully understand 
national policy in the changing context to which you refer, and we have had a close 
relationship with Public Health in the development and management of the Outbreak 
Management Plan, which has specific reference to schools and settings. 
 
Now going forward, we will continue to engage with schools on all coronavirus related 
issues, and we will be supporting them on the usage of the catch up premium and national 
tutoring scheme announced by the Government in July.  We will be making best use of the 
additional resources we will be receiving in respect of supporting children and young 
people’s mental health and wellbeing, and reorganising service delivery to support children 
back to school and back to class based learning. 
 
I would like to remind you that in July we started a free online counselling service for 11-18 
year olds.  It is emotional support through digital counselling and there is no referral, no 
waiting list.  It is open 7 days a week and 365 days a year. 
 
Supplementary Question: 
As indicated in the question and in your answer the impact of the pandemic on children’s 
mental health is a big concern.  What steps are you taking to make sure that Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services have sufficient capacity to meet the likely need? 
 
Supplementary Answer: 
As you are aware, when it comes to CAMHS, there is a waiting list and there has always 
been a waiting list, and it looks as if there will continue to be a waiting list.  That is why I 
am very pleased that we have now this free, online counselling service.  We are hoping 
that this will be something that children and young adults will be using, and of course, 
should it turn out that this problem is bigger than we have been notified of so far, then we 
will need to look into further measures to help them.  
 
65.2 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Highways and 

Transport the following question:  
 
What will be the effect of the proposed houses in Winnersh Farm from the local plan 
update and the extra but unmentioned houses at the new SEND school on the traffic 

22



 

 
 

modelling of the new Winnersh Relief Road roundabout? 
 
Answer 
The consultation draft of the Local Plan Update (February 2020) proposes the allocation of 
land at Winnersh Farm for around 250 new homes.  The proposed number of new homes 
was adjusted downwards to account for a potential new SEND school and the traffic it 
would create.  Responses to the draft Local Plan Update are currently being reviewed and 
analysed.   
  
As part of the preparation of that draft Local Plan Update, a supporting transport 
assessment was produced and is available on the Councils’ website.  
  
The assessment looked at all the junctions across the Borough and how they would be 
impacted under various development scenarios.  The assessment considered both the 
new homes and the delivery of a SEND school at Winnersh Farms.  
  
The assessment shows that the Woodward Close junction would operate at a level below 
which its capacity is considered to become a concern. 
  
However, as with all proposed sites in the draft Local Plan Update, the impact and 
sustainability of any development will be further considered as the Local Plan Update 
progresses.  More detailed assessment would also be required as part of the process for 
determining any subsequent planning application. This would include using specific 
‘Junction’ software being used.  
  
It is anticipated that a detailed application for the proposed SEND school will be submitted 
in January 2021.  A separate outline planning application for housing on the remaining 
Council-owned land is likely to be submitted early in 2021 as well.  
 
Supplementary Question: 
Since this nearly triples the number of houses coming out of Woodward Close which was 
definitely not included in this planning, as the planning was all done several years ago and 
all of the updates for that were done several years ago, it has not been edited at all, what 
are you planning to do to help?  
 
Supplementary Answer: 
I think I have answered that question already Rachelle.  This is not the end of the process.  
The junction traffic will be assessed again during the detailed planning application and 
during the Local Plan update as it progresses, so this is a long view of the position.  
 
65.3 Paul Fishwick asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the 

following question:  
 
Winter Maintenance Plan – Under 2.11. The Council does not promote the use of bicycles 
during periods of prolonged hazardous conditions. With the exception of shared 
carriageway/cycleway routes on a primary or secondary salting route, shared 
footway/cycleway and remote cycleway networks are not salted when hard frost, ice or 
prolonged hazardous conditions are forecast.  
 
With the active travel agenda and more walking and cycling being promoted will WBC be 
reviewing this policy to add these cycle routes on a priority basis? 
 

23



 

 
 

Answer: 
There is certainly a shift within government and in the transport field towards encouraging 
more active travel and Wokingham Borough Council has been supportive of this agenda 
with its programme of Greenways, the A329 cycleway and the work of award winning My 
Journey team.  The Council is in the process of producing a new Local Transport Plan, 
which will no doubt encompass new active travel measures and an increased reliance on 
cycling particularly for the movement of people throughout the Borough. We will be 
reviewing our approach to winter maintenance on cycle routes before this winter in order to 
identify the key commuting routes that would benefit from being prioritised for winter 
maintenance. Thank you for raising this issue.  
 
It is worth noting that the Council has already purchased 10 small push along gritters 
which are capable of undertaking additional gritting in pedestrian areas and cycleways 
such as outside schools or shopping centres in the event of prolonged bad weather. 
 
Supplementary Question: 
If Wokingham Borough Council are really serious about the active travel agenda there is 
an urgent need to ensure that walking and cycling routes are included at the very first 
opportunity, so that this sustainable mode of transport will not be lost.  Will the Executive 
Member please confirm that they will definitely be included in the 2020/21 Winter 
Maintenance Plan? 
 
Supplementary Answer: 
I did say that they will be included and we will review the key routes and make sure that 
they are included. 
 
65.4 Carl Doran asked the Leader of the Council the following question:  
 
On August 27th an article by you, Councillor Halsall, referring to the Government's 
proposed planning reforms was published on the 'Conservative Home' website. 
 
In the article you say this: 
 
"The Cummings affair, Robert Jenrick, Coronavirus, Scotland and school results have 
hugely dented us Tories. We will do badly in May unless the Government quickly learns 
from its mistakes" 
 
Do you think the Government will learn from its mistakes, specifically these planning 
reforms, which so affect us all? 
 
Answer 
As you know the Government is consulting on changes to the planning system and whilst I 
cannot presume to know how it will respond to the consultation, I would encourage all of 
you to familiarise yourselves with the consultations and make your views known by: 
contacting your MP, contacting the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government, visiting the Council’s website for more information and a copy of the 
Council’s draft response (when available). More information and an online petition is 
available at www.enough-is-enough.org.uk and taking part in the Government consultation 
directly. 
 
As you know, I have been actively campaigning against the White Paper and have worked 
pretty much continuously since early August to advise as many councillors, residents and 

24

http://www.enough-is-enough.org.uk/


 

 
 

MPs, as I possibly could, together with stunts and articles in the media.  Residents and 
councillors’ clear support will help me a great deal.  
 
Supplementary Question: 
I am definitely opposed to these planning reforms in their entirety. So you spoke to me the 
other day saying that you had spoken to Conservative Ministers and MPs, and I hope what 
you heard from them is not ‘limited and specific’ shall we say.  In the same article, you 
proposed your own manifesto for the planning system, including a bit which I fully agree 
with – removal of developers’ ability to avoid obligation through viability.  I wonder if you 
are aware that a local developer recently received planning permission for a development 
of 55 one and two bedroom flats in Wokingham town centre, where they pleaded on the 
basis of viability that they should supply absolutely zero affordable housing.  That local 
developer was Wokingham Borough Council.  I think I referred to this decision at Planning 
Committee as ‘morally repugnant.’  Will you ensure that this Council sets a clear example, 
rectifies its mistake, and puts affordable housing in this WBC owned and built 
development?  
 
Supplementary Answer: 
I honestly cannot talk about specific planning applications.  First of all I do not know about 
it in detail and I am not sure at what stage of the process that it is, so it would be wrong for 
me to do so. 
 
Let me assure you that our Core Strategy, which has now been in existence for 10 years, 
has a 35% affordable housing requirement.  We gave a commitment, this administration, 
to build social houses, and for want of a better word, council homes.  We gave a 
commitment to build 1000 in 4 years and we look as if we are going to better that.  Yes, we 
are very committed to providing homes which people can afford to buy on their incomes, or 
rent.  
 
65.5 Rachel Burgess asked the Executive Member for Finance and Housing the 

following question which was answered by the Deputy Executive Member 
for Finance and Housing:  

 
Our care leavers face significant challenges, currently exacerbated by Covid-19. When 
they move into their own accommodation and manage their own budget they can often find 
themselves struggling to cope with personal finances.  
 
Since 2018, Council has been legally obliged to support care leavers to the age of 25. As 
corporate parents for these care leavers we should all be ensuring they have the same 
chances as we would want for our own children. Yet, in Wokingham, these same care 
leavers currently have to pay Council Tax as soon as they turn 21, on top of learning how 
to manage a household, job, studies and other bills, often without the support of family or 
other networks.  
 
We know that Council Tax debt can be particularly daunting for care leavers, and can 
escalate quickly. Contrast this with young people who are not care leavers, who will often 
have parents to support them, and even house them, so they have no Council Tax to pay. 
 
The cost of exemption is not material for this Council.  So, when will Wokingham do the 
right thing, as many other Councils have done, and make care leavers exempt from paying 
Council Tax until they turn 25? 
 

25



 

 
 

Answer 
As you will be aware, the Council finds itself in extremely challenging financial 
circumstances as a result of Covid 19.  We already have an in year overspend of 
approximately £4million and we have considerable financial impact flowing into next year 
in relation to Covid 19 alone.  These include valuable lost income that we need to fund 
services and higher costs of care arising from isolation and lockdown.  Indeed, as I am 
sure you are aware Councils up and down the country, are having to make some very 
stark choices. 
 
We will of course continue with our approach during such challenging times of targeting 
our very limited resources into the areas of most need and in delivering the key priority 
investments for our community.  
 
On 29th March 2018, it was agreed at the Executive meeting that all Wokingham care 
leavers up to the age of 21, years would be exempt from Council Tax.  Furthermore, I am 
aware that the Corporate Parenting Board has undertaken work to explore the possibility 
of extending that exemption up to the age of 25.  This proposal would obviously come at a 
cost and would have to be considered along with all other competing priorities across the 
Council, in arriving at another balanced budget.  This process of setting up next year’s 
MTFP is of course set in a stark financial context as I described earlier.  It would therefore 
be irresponsible of me to make any commitments at this stage.  
 
Supplementary Question: 
I obviously understand the impact on the Council’s finances at the moment, but the values 
involved are actually virtually immaterial. It is actually quite a small cohort, but obviously, 
for those individuals it can be completely life changing.  I do not know why we cannot just 
do the right thing and just do it now.  Why is that? Why cannot we just do it now? 
 
Supplementary Answer: 
I understand where you are coming from and of course, all the councillors have very 
serious corporate parenting responsibilities.  It is at the front of all our minds, but I think 
particularly with the financial situation that we are in right now, which is unique, we need to 
be very disciplined with the finances, make sure we are going through the same robust 
budgeting process that we always do.  Now is not the time to be messing around with that 
to be honest.  
 
65.6 Caroline Smith asked the Executive Member for Children's Services the 

following question:  
 
With the problems of social distancing at the Borough Schools, are the free schools' meals 
provided going to be a hot meal? This is important to the children being provided for by 
this service. 
 
Answer 
At the present time schools are focussing on securing their provision that enables all pupils 
to make the safest possible return to school.  This involves implementing many operational 
changes including the use of shared spaces and teaching arrangements.   
 
Schools and catering providers are having to get used to the new ways that schools have 
to operate in, and for some schools having large groups in dining halls is unsafe, and 
delivering hot meals to classrooms is a health and safety risk. 
 

26



 

 
 

As a result, schools are in discussion with their catering providers about the most effective 
way of providing opportunity for pupils to access their school lunches.  This may mean at 
this time that for some schools the offer continues to be a sandwich style option as has 
been the case throughout the pandemic.   
 
Each school will determine its own arrangements for the provision of school meals, and 
some choose to purchase through the contract held by the Council with Caterlink.  We 
recognise that for many children, access to a hot meal is important and we are working 
with Caterlink to ensure a return to hot meal provision as soon as is possible, and not later 
than October half term.   
 
Supplementary Question: 
Do we expect a higher uptake of free school meals due to the economic decline and do we 
have enough in the budget to cover any increase? 
 
Supplementary Answer: 
Normally it is about 7% of children in the Borough who have free school meals and I do not 
have any information if this has increased or not.  I think that the schools have not 
submitted any information about this to the Council.  I will ask tomorrow if we have any 
information coming in about it or any indication that there will be a higher uptake.  
 
66. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD MATTERS  
 
66.1 Gary Cowan asked the Leader of the Council the following question:  
 
Question: 
Councillor Halsall earlier in the meeting challenged the Lib Dem’s competence in financial 
matters when debating treasury management, by them not being able to identify specific 
areas in the report.  Yet in today’s Wokingham Paper on page 9, he rightly encourages all 
of us to join the challenge against 1635 houses a year, this Conservative government 
proposes for Wokingham, but he fails to give any indication as to what the right number 
might be for Wokingham.  As he well knows, just saying no is not good enough, getting the 
flagship Grazeley of 15000.  Would he be considered just as incompetent on housing as 
he suggested the Lib Dems are on finances, if he cannot say how many houses a year is 
right for Wokingham?  
 
Answer: 
It was an extraordinary speech which did not contain a coherent question.  It appears that 
the question invites me to state a number.  The current number is the one he set in the 
Core Strategy which has been modified by the change in standard method, which 
happened in 2018.  We had a referendum on housing numbers some time ago and we 
know that the residents would like less.  My view is not dissimilar to Gary’s view when he 
published the Core Strategy. 
 
66.2 Andrew Mickleburgh asked the Executive Member for Highways and 

Transport the following question:  
 
Question: 
On 28 August, a cyclist was airlifted to hospital following a serious accident at the Cutbush 
Lane/Carshalton Way roundabout in Hawkedon ward.  For years, numerous requests have 
been made prior to this latest accident, for safety improvements at this dangerous location.  
On 3rd and 15th of this month, I emailed officers to ask that this site be visited as a matter 

27



 

 
 

of urgency, and a plan devised to improve safety.  You were copied into both emails.  I 
have not received any responses.  Could you please commit to getting this matter properly 
addressed without further delay? 
 
Answer: 
I do not respond to emails that I am copied into if they are addressed to somebody else.  I 
let somebody else addressed in the emails to actually respond.  However, I have already 
talked to Highways about this.  I investigated some other opportunities for measures to 
reduce the speed, and I have certainly asked them to have a look at the vegetation sight 
lines on Cutbush Lane to make sure you can see people coming out of Cutbush Lane and 
going on to Meldreth and Carshalton.  I have taken action but I do not generally respond to 
emails I am copied into, otherwise I would be sending emails all night. 
 
66.3 Stephen Conway asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport 

the following question:  
 
Question: 
Will she meet with me to discuss how we may progress some ideas I have on highway 
improvements that will increase public safety at the Twyford Village crossroads? 
 
Answer: 
I have already done that once Stephen, I think last year, and I am happy to do so again.  
 
66.4 Laura Blumenthal asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport 

the following question:  
 
Question: 
Residents on Larch Drive have told me that a number of elderly people have fallen over 
near the front of the opening of the road because there is a tree there.  Its tree roots have 
buckled the pavement and there have been some really nasty falls there.  Can you let me 
know what the Highways department can do to solve this situation and help the residents? 
 
Answer: 
As you say, the tree roots are pushing the tarmac on that side of the path up and making it 
rather uneven.  I have asked the Highways inspectors to go out and look at that site.  They 
went out yesterday and I chased them again today to see if information had come back.  I 
have not got any information back yet but when I do get it, I will let you know.  
 
66.5 Shirley Boyt asked the Executive Member for Environment and Leisure the 

following question:  
 
Question: 
The A3290 flyover in Culver Lane has long been blighted by graffiti.  It is an eyesore but 
WBC’s policy on graffiti allows the graffiti to remain.  Recently a resident complained about 
various offensive words on some of the columns.  This resulted in WBC sending out an 
operative who simply painted over the offending words, leaving the rest of the graffiti in 
place.  The resident is appalled that the rest of the graffiti was ignored and that this 
opportunity to improve our area was not taken up.  I would like to ask on their behalf, how 
much more would it have cost to do the job properly? 
 
Answer: 
I will look at it tomorrow when I speak to Clare Lawrence and her team.  I will make sure 

28



 

 
 

something is done about it but I do not know the exact cost but I will find out and get back 
to you.  
 
66.6 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Environment 

and Leisure the following question:  
 
Question: 
Winnersh Meadows Park, which is a Wokingham Borough park.  There are two trails that 
are blocked by fallen trees.  I have requested that the trees be removed twice but nothing 
has been done.  The millennium oak has also been cut down and has never been 
replaced.  When are these three things going to be fixed? 
 
Answer: 
Once again, I shall be speaking to the officers tomorrow and will get something done about 
it. 
 
66.7 Imogen Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Highways and 

Transport the following question:  
 
Question: 
Within my ward, Old Forest Road has been closed until spring for the building of the 
northern distributor road.  This has effectively blocked off access to the new park for most 
of the residents in that area.  The only way for residents of Aston Road, Lowther Road, 
Wayside and Lenham Close, to access the park, is to take a long, circuitous route walking 
down to Emmbrook Road, Toutley Road, Queens Road, which effectively makes this park 
inaccessible for many of our residents.  Please can we get some support from Wokingham 
Borough Council with the addition of a pedestrian route across the Emm Brook to allow 
access to continue during these works?  
 
Answer: 
I am happy to work with Parry to see if we can find some sort of solution, bearing in mind 
how long the roadworks have got to continue for.  
 
66.8 Daniel Sargeant asked the Executive Member for Environment and Leisure 

the following question:  
 
Question: 
The Jerry Moor Hill area of my ward – residents have raised with me that there are a 
number of large oak trees which they think are in ill health and posing a safety issue.  
Officers have been out, checked them over and claimed that all is well.  Since then there 
has been a large bough which has fallen in a play park, which thankfully did not result in 
any injuries.  Can we get a second opinion of officers on these trees particularly the ones 
near the play park? 
 
Answer: 
Thank you for bringing that to my attention.  I will be speaking to the Trees department 
tomorrow.  I am very sorry to hear about the unfortunate break of the limb from a tree 
which has fallen down.  That is very unfortunate and I am pleased that no one was hurt, 
but I will be on to the officers tomorrow to have another inspection because that Jerry 
Moor Hill was only inspected very recently.  We need to be very vigilant and inspect every 
tree for any other possible loose limbs.  From a safety viewpoint, I will be asking them to 
have another look tomorrow. 

29



 

 
 

 
 
66.9 Caroline Smith asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport 

the following question:  
 
Question: 
Traffic close to the junction of Falstaff Avenue and Harcourt Drive has created a very 
dangerous situation for pedestrians, cyclists and drivers.  Since at least October 2018 Lib 
Dem councillors have sought to extend yellow lines at this location.  Eventually on 11 
February, you reviewed and approved an IEMD to introduce parking restrictions in this 
area.  On 23 August, you reported that lines should be painted in the week commencing 
31 August.  Why have these lines still not been painted and when will this be finally dealt 
with please? 
 
Answer: 
I have been asking exactly the same question myself.  We have had a problem with 
actually getting line-painting gangs out because of Covid.  For some reason, although we 
have managed to get tarmac filling holes, it has been very difficult to get lines painted, but I 
am already on that case and I have asked the same question myself. 
 
66.10 David Hare asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the 

following question:  
 
Question: 
The footbridge beside Earley station is in urgent need of repair.  When this happens, and 
please do not leave it too long so that the footbridge is closed before it is needed, please 
can you insert a ramped offshute for reaching the London bound platform of Earley station, 
so that people unable to negotiate stairs due to disabilities or buggies, can access the 
trains to and from Earley station? 
 
Answer: 
I must point out that this is not in your ward.  However, I have already talked to the railway 
about disability access for Earley station.  I have talked to them about Earley and 
Winnersh actually.  Winnersh Triangle, the platform is unfortunately not wide enough for 
wheelchair access, so I have asked them to go away and look and see what they can do 
at Earley station to improve the disabled access there.  I met with them already a few 
weeks ago and had a good talk about what all the disabled access opportunities were, but 
Malcolm, I think we should only be asking questions in this time about ward matters. 
 
66.11 Tahir Maher asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the 

following question:  
 
Question: 
I have logged what I and a number of residents consider to be a number of issues with 
potholes in Betchworth Avenue in Maiden Erlegh.  I was informed that the potholes did not 
warrant corrective action.  I understand that the standards engineers use is the UK 
Pavement Management System to prioritise maintenance.  I accepted their ruling but I did 
not agree with it so I waited a while, but on recent inspection, several potholes had actually 
been filled.  The entrance to Betchworth Avenue from Wilderness Road is peppered with a 
series of potholes across both lanes for about 200 yards.  I invite you to visit Betchworth 
Avenue to see for yourself and agree with me that all the potholes need an urgent and 
immediate repair. 

30



 

 
 

 
 
Answer: 
I have visited many potholes in my time and I am very happy to go and visit the ones in 
Betchworth Avenue as well.  I would urge anybody that sees potholes, to report them 
online.  We have a new jet patcher, which does temporary repairs, which is actually very 
effective.  That certainly sorts out any safety issues before any proper maintenance can 
take place, so please put them online and they go straight to Volker and Volker will deal 
with them quite quickly especially if there is a safety issue.  
 
66.12 Rachel Bishop-Firth asked the Executive Member for Highways and 

Transport the following question:  
 
Question: 
Emmbrook residents, including myself, overturned Townhouse crossing since 2016.  The 
current bridge is an eyesore and cannot be used by anybody with a pram, wheelchair or 
bike.  The temporary bridge is so steep you need to be reasonably fit to tackle it on foot. 
They are not compliant with the Disability Access requirements of the Equalities Act, and 
are a barrier for people trying to access the town.  Different members of the Executive 
have assured us for years that the Council was working with Network Rail to get a step 
free bridge installed.  At one stage, these Members were even talking about contributing 
CIL money.  What pressure is this Council exerting on Network Rail to ensure that this 
crossing of the railway is compliant with the Equalities Act, for its residents as a matter of 
urgency?  
 
Answer: 
I need to give you a written answer to this.  It is a bit too detailed for a ward matter I think.  
So, if you could bear with me I will get you a written answer.  
 
66.13 Clive Jones asked the Executive Member for Residents Services, 

Communications and Emissions the following question:  
 
Question:  
A Hawkedon resident recently visited Cornwall and saw solar panels that were the size of 
small roof tiles on some new properties.  When looking at updating the Borough Design 
Guide, can we include a requirement for developers to use these small solar panel roof 
tiles when approving developments in Wokingham? 
 
Answer: 
It is a really great piece of technology.  I have seen it a couple of times now, had it shown 
to me a couple of times by people on Facebook, and other places.  I have been talking to 
an organisation called the Active Building Centre, and I am trying to get their leadership to 
come along to talk at the next cross party working group on climate emergency.  They are 
doing some absolutely fantastic work in terms of retrofitting houses and also how to design 
houses going forward to make them carbon neutral or even carbon positive.  I will look into 
it and I am sure Wayne has an opinion as well.  
 
67. STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS, 

AND DEPUTY EXECUTIVE MEMBERS  
John Halsall proposed the suspension of rule 4.2.12 q to enable him to speak for up to 10 
minutes and for the Statements by the Leader of the Council, Executive Members and 
Deputy Executive Members item to be extended to up to 25 minutes.  This was seconded 

31



 

 
 

by Chris Bowring.  Upon being put to the vote, it was agreed that the rule be suspended 
for the meeting.  
 
John Halsall Leader of the Council: 
First of all I take pleasure in announcing that Charlotte Haitham Taylor will chair the Arts 
and Council Working Group in the future.  
 
Wokingham Borough Council and Wokingham Borough is facing an existential threat.  I do 
not use those words lightly.  The beautiful Borough that it is my honour to serve could very 
soon be no more if we do not stop the Government’s plans to inflict an avalanche of 
housing development upon us.  The innocent sounding but deeply pernicious changes to 
the current planning system consultation, ends in just two weeks.  This consultation was 
launched in almost total secrecy during the school summer holidays when the nation was 
focused on GCSEs, A levels, lockdowns and quarantines.  It was also launched alongside 
a far more heralded consultation called ‘Planning for the future’ which has generated 
debate and notoriety, which is in fact a smokescreen as it is only a Green Paper; a set of 
ideas that may or may not become law at some point in the future.  The changes to the 
planning system on the other hand requires no change to the law and could be enacted 
almost immediately after the consultation ends, with just the Minister’s signature, and yet 
its ramifications will be felt in our Borough and many others across the country, forever 
more.  We must be clear what is at stake. In just two weeks’ time at the stroke of Secretary 
of State Robert Jenrick’s pen, we could be condemned to face 1635 new houses being 
built in the Borough each year.  That is a town the size of Wokingham in less than a 
decade.  This would come with less affordable housing because fewer developments 
would be required to provide it.  There would be no appeal, no further debate.  Two weeks, 
that is all we have got.   
 
Let me paint you a picture of the dystopian future.  Our levels of congestion would be 
intolerable.  Access to medical services, schools and other basic services, would be 
stretched to bursting point.  We would see the green of the Borough disappear.  This level 
of development would see an increase of just short of 25% in ten years which would 
approximate to 15% with the land mass.  The plan led development, which has been at the 
core of the Council’s strategy, for a sustainable future, would be imperilled by the lack of a 
defendable five year land supply which would need to be in the region of 10000 to 
discourage speculative land promoters.  This would further imperil the infrastructure 
funded by the developers.  The Government says all this destruction is necessary to get 
the economy going and to prevent NIMBYs blocking necessary housing.  But that is a false 
position.  We have proved with our carefully planned development in recent years that 
there is an alternative to both the Government’s Developers Charter and just say no 
attitude.  We are not the NIMBYs of the Government propaganda.  We believe in building 
the homes that people need, in providing Council housing and genuinely affordable 
housing for all.   We do not believe in and will never accept the position of a concrete 
swamp across our fields and villages. 
 
Since early August, I have been working ceaselessly to ensure that our cause gains the 
widest publicity.  I have used any and every stunt to gain notoriety.  All our MPs have been 
hugely supportive.  I have spoken to huge numbers of Council leaders and Members of 
Parliament, probably within the hundreds now of each.  I have undertaken an influential 
debate with England’s leading planning barrister Chris Katokowski, who was part of the 
authorship of the Planning for the Future White Paper.  Anybody who wishes to see it and 
who has not, please contact me.  I have used any and every stunt to gain notoriety as I 
have said.  Conservative Home helped, as did the Daily Mail.  I have led the Unitary 

32



 

 
 

Councils Network’s response and that of the South East’s Strategic Leaders.  It has been 
a little like chucking mud at a wall unceasingly in the hope that some sticks.  I have talked 
to Kent County Council.  I have talked to all the councillors in the Westmead.  I am 
delighted that finally I seem to have broken through, and had a long and productive 
conversation with Robert Jenrick on Friday last.  I used the opportunity to invite him to the 
Borough, which he was pleased to accept.  However, that is only the beginning, the end of 
the beginning.  It is important that now he is aware of the issue he becomes aware of the 
strength of feeling in the Borough.  We have appealed to all residents to write to their MP, 
the Secretary of State, sign up to the petition, and respond to the consultation.  I am urging 
everybody to join me in that campaign.  Time is running out but hope is not lost.  Please 
take action today.   
 
We are facing another threat whose effects are equally serious and can be devastating.  
We are continuing to face Coronavirus.  Initially we thought, we hoped, that it would be 
short term and then a solution would be found.  This is far from the case.  During the 
emergency, we should remember that though our cases have been low some have sadly 
died and others have been very ill.  We have changed the way we worked, supporting all 
our residents and ensured that the services ran as normal as far as possible.  Whilst this 
was expensive financially this was eminently doable in the short term, and I believe we did 
the right thing.  We now are having to face both ways.  We now know that there is not 
going to be a short-term fix.  Much of that, that we did at the height of the crisis, we shall 
continue to need to do.  We have returned with few exceptions to delivering all our 
services, but and it is a big but, the financial environment is very strained.  Not only do we 
have to recover the cost of what we did earlier in the year, but from a lower income base 
than we had in the past.  Also, we have to confront the cost of expanded services.  An 
example is the expected income of leisure services and car parking is very much lower.   
On the cost side, we are looking after more of the vulnerable children and adults, and the 
cost of care homes has increased.  So, in confronting 2021-22 we will have be more 
imaginative and more commercial. We may not be able to achieve all the aspirations that 
we had in the short term and delay the implementation of projects.  This will be the debate 
of many months to come and it is somewhat dependent on the length of the emergency 
and the extent of Government intervention. 
 
Lastly, please follow the Government’s guidance of physical hygiene i.e. wash your hands, 
social distancing at all times, cover your face when required to.  It saves lives.  
 
Pauline Jorgensen, Executive Member for Highways and Transport: 
The Highways team have been busy progressing the Borough’s new road schemes, taking 
advantage of Covid lockdown when roads were quieter to resurface busy areas such as 
the A4, Showcase roundabout and Molly Millers Lane.  The new Arborfield Cross relief 
road is progressing well and we look forward to opening it at the end of October.  The new 
London Road cycleway in Wokingham will also be completed by the end of October.  This 
cycleway is designed for young cyclists to be use either the road or considerately share 
the new wide pavement depending on their confidence, cycling ability, and of course the 
speed that they want to travel at. 
 
Works to the north Wokingham distributor road to connect the Old Forest Road to Reading 
Road, has commenced and major investment is underway in highways maintenance with 
the doubling of the budget this year to £8million.  Over one hundred roads are earmarked 
for resurfacing.  We have done quite a lot of microasphalt already with the resurfacing 
schemes dealing with some of the worst roads starting soon, with the long awaited 
resurfacing of the top of Hartsbourne Road which will start around 19 October.  

33



 

 
 

 
I am very keen to return Wokingham town centre to as near normal as possible following 
the Covid related restrictions introduced when shops were first reopened on 15 June.  The 
aim is to assist businesses and also to make it easier for pedestrians to cross the road and 
taxis to operate.  Following conversations with local shop keepers arranged by local 
councillors Julian McGhee Sumner and Phil Cunnington, and several meetings with shop 
keepers representatives of the Town Council, I am pleased to advise of the successful 
removal of barriers in Rectory Road and Wiltshire Road.  We have agreed that Covid 
barriers on the normal side of Broad Street from Nat West bank will be removed this 
weekend, restoring the taxi rank.  If this is successful, we are scheduled to remove all the 
remaining barriers on the weekend of the 26th/27th.  At the request of the Town Council the 
traders’ representatives, the barriers on the Post Office side will not be removed until 
26th/27th either.  We will also be adding some more signage to remind people to socially 
distance and also to please ask them to support local businesses.  
 
Charles Margetts, Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Services: 
I want to briefly update Members on a few things that are going on in terms of Public 
Health.  First of all the current situation with Covid 19.  Cases remain low in Wokingham.  
As things stand currently our Track and Trace figure is running at nearly 90% which is a 
reflection of the hard work that is going on to keep these things this way.  Wokingham is 
currently a very low risk area for Covid and everyone is working very hard to keep it that 
way.  This ison a background of when schools have gone back and we are trying very hard 
to keep the message going out about following the Government advice, as Councillor 
Halsall mentioned.   
 
Members will be aware of the NHS Track and Trace app which is now live from 24 
September.  This has been months of work to get this ready.  We looked at all the other 
apps on the market basically and are convinced that this is by far the best one, and 
encourage all Members and residents to adopt it, and all local businesses.  It is a key part 
of how we fight Covid.   
 
As the time has gone on, we are obviously changing our response to Covid in the 
community.  We will see shortly in a few weeks, we will be launching what we call 
Community Response Part 2, which was changing and adapting to the situation; focusing 
on mental health, people who are stuck at home and are too scared to come out and need 
support, focusing on loneliness and also focusing on those who may sadly about to 
become unemployed and providing them with the support and advice that they need.   
 
I wanted to also talk about testing which has been much in the news recently.  The 
national situation with the shortage of lab capacity is obviously very concerning.  Can we 
assure everybody that as things stand today our care homes are safe and have enough 
testing and the situation there is being continually monitored.  We have been working very 
hard to get some progress with this. Myself, Councillor Halsall and Councillor Kaiser 
attended a meeting with John Redwood, James Sunderland and Teresa May online to 
lobby forcefully our unhappiness with the situation and to get them to actually work with us 
to resolve it.  I know James Sunderland had a meeting on our behalf with the Health 
Minister yesterday to raise these issues.  I am pleased to advise that we have secured 
extra testing from our health partners which will be available for key workers as and when 
we need.  We are keen to go forward to make sure that all the needy, the vulnerable and 
the key workers of Wokingham are supported.  In April when central Government could not 
provide PPE, we mounted a public appeal and private procurement to secure enough PPE 
to keep our key workers going, to keep our care homes safe.  In May when the Royal 

34



 

 
 

Berkshire was discharging patients with Covid into our care homes without tests, we broke 
central Government advice and refused discharges to keep our community safe until 
basically testing could be put in place.  Today, central Government cannot provide enough 
testing.  We have secured extra testing for our key workers from our health partners 
already and we are in the process of procuring further private testing to ensure all of our 
key workers, social workers, dealing with the aged and vulnerable, education key workers 
as well, have access to testing and that we have provision for any possible emergencies 
that come down the road.  Again, we are trying to be proactive, positive and do everything 
that we can to keep our residents safe. 
 
UllaKarin Clark, Executive Member for Children’s Services: 
The Covid restrictions over the recent months have posed unprecedented challenges to 
Children’s Services in Wokingham.  I am proud to say that our dedicated staff have 
continued to work tirelessly to support children, young people and schools throughout this 
crisis.  The Learning, Achievements and Partnership service has worked closely with 
schools to ensure their safe opening this term, supporting work with individual parents and 
carers to ally their fears and securing save and sufficient school transport, including 
additional buses, taxis and routes to support existing arrangements.  We also have in 
schools made the best use of the catch up premium and national tutoring programme 
announced by the Government in July, which is designed to help children make up for the 
lost teaching time that they have experienced.  This has been a tough year for school 
leavers but I am delighted to tell you that four of our children in care and care leavers have 
been offered places at university to start this year. 
 
In social care, arrangements were swiftly put in place at the beginning of the lockdown to 
ensure that the most vulnerable children continued to be seen face-to-face, using 
appropriate PPE.  Children received regular contact though innovative use of virtual 
technology, something which has not been replicated in other authorities.  Our Family 
Resource Centre has remained open throughout, offering safe opportunities for parents to 
spend time with their children.  The Bridges Short Breaks Centre has continued to offer 
day and overnight respite visits for disabled children.  Our other centres are now starting to 
reopen with appropriate safety measures in place.  We have had many compliments from 
parents, foster carers and young people on our response to the Covid restrictions, and the 
support that they have received.  I am sure you will join me in thanking our staff for their 
incredible continuing dedication and hard work in these most difficult circumstances. 
 
Our new specialist Compass team, working intensively with children whose placements 
are at risk of breakdown or who are at risk of coming into care is now fully recruited to, and 
already supporting nine young people.  Four new practice assistants have joined us this 
week to support the social workers in delivering high quality services to children and young 
people.  At the same time turnover of staff in the social care teams, which had been very 
high, has reduced below that of our comparative authorities.  The number of locum 
workers is reducing in line with our plans.  All in all very good news. 
 
68. MOTIONS  
 
68.1 Motion 439 submitted by Rachel Burgess  
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion, submitted by Rachel Burgess and 
seconded by Shirley Boyt.  
 
‘This Council will adopt the Council Tax Protocol agreed by Citizens Advice and the Local 
Government Association (June 2017) during the municipal year 2020/21.  

35



 

 
 

 
This protocol includes, inter alia: 
 

 Wokingham Borough Council will work with enforcement agencies and Citizens Advice to 
help people pay their council tax bills while accessing debt advice 

 All communication with residents about council tax will be clear 

 Wokingham Borough Council will consider using the Standard Financial Statement when 
calculating repayment plans 

 Flexible payment arrangements will be offered to residents 

 Where a resident receives Council Tax support, Wokingham Borough Council will 
consider matters carefully, including refraining from using enforcement agents 

 Wokingham Borough Council will publish their policy on residents in vulnerable 
circumstances 

 
The full protocol can be found here: 
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/campaigns/Council%20Tax/Citizens%20Advice%20Council%20Tax%20Protocol%202017.pdf 
‘ 
Rachel Burgess commented that she had submitted the Motion on a number of occasions and was 
pleased that the Executive had now signed the Council Tax protocol.  Building on that progress, the 
Motion called on the Council to fully adopt the protocol and implement the actions contained within in 
it.  
 
Upon being put to the vote, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried. 
  
RESOLVED:  That this Council will adopt the Council Tax Protocol agreed by Citizens Advice and 
the Local Government Association (June 2017) during the municipal year 2020/21.  
 
This protocol includes, inter alia: 
 

 Wokingham Borough Council will work with enforcement agencies and Citizens Advice to help 
people pay their council tax bills while accessing debt advice 

 All communication with residents about council tax will be clear 

 Wokingham Borough Council will consider using the Standard Financial Statement when 
calculating repayment plans 

 Flexible payment arrangements will be offered to residents 

 Where a resident receives Council Tax support, Wokingham Borough Council will consider 
matters carefully, including refraining from using enforcement agents 

 Wokingham Borough Council will publish their policy on residents in vulnerable circumstances 
 
The full protocol can be found here: 
 
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/campaigns/Council%20Tax/Citizens%20Advice%20Council%20Tax%20Protocol%202017.pdf.’  

  
 
68.2 Motion 440 submitted by Rachel Bishop-Firth  
 
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by Rachel Bishop-Firth 
and seconded by Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey.  
 
‘EU nationals are our family members, parents, friends and colleagues.  They care for our 
elderly and they teach our children. They are an integral part of a vibrant and thriving 
Wokingham.  

36

https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/campaigns/Council%20Tax/Citizens%20Advice%20Council%20Tax%20Protocol%202017.pdf
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/campaigns/Council%20Tax/Citizens%20Advice%20Council%20Tax%20Protocol%202017.pdf


 

 
 

 
In the Referendum campaign, we were promised that "there will be no change for EU 
citizens already lawfully resident in the UK and [they] …will be treated no less favourably 
than they are at present”. 
 
This promise has not been honoured.  Many EU citizens are unaware that if Brexit goes 
ahead, they risk deportation from their homes of many years unless they are granted 
settled status.  
  
Home Office figures show that many EU nationals have not applied for Settled Status, or 
have applied but have been refused.   We don’t know how many Wokingham residents, 
perhaps elderly or vulnerable people, are unaware that they may become illegal 
immigrants.  We risk a Windrush-style scandal here in Wokingham, with families broken 
up. 
 
We also need to think of the 1.3 million British citizens who have made their homes in EU 
countries, who may be forced to return to the UK, particularly when Brexit means they lose 
their access to healthcare.  Many of these people are elderly, and many have made their 
homes overseas because of difficulties making ends meet on their pensions.  How many 
will come to Wokingham, needing assistance with social housing and other support? 
 
Therefore, the Council asks that Officers urgently undertake and publish a review of the 
how the Council can best mitigate the effects of Brexit on local residents including: 
 
1. How we can promote and assist with applications for settled status particularly for 

residents who face language or technology barriers. 
 

2. What we can do to help landlords and employers to be trained on immigration 
status, to avoid potential discrimination against EU nationals.  

 
3. How Brexit is likely to affect EU nationals accessing services provided by the 

Council, and steps that we can take to mitigate difficulties. 
 

4. The likely impact on Wokingham of British citizens returning to the UK and how we 
can best prepare for this.’ 

 
Rachel Bishop-Firth commented that she had first submitted the Motion in October last 
year.  It was important to support those residents who would have to apply for settled 
status, some of whom may not realise that they had to do so.  She was pleased that the 
Council had offered to assist residents with the settled status app if they needed it and 
questioned how those who might have language or technology difficulties could be further 
assisted.  Many British citizens currently living abroad may also be forced to return to the 
UK and would also require support. 
 
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey reiterated the need to support EU citizens living locally. 
 
It was proposed by Pauline Jorgensen and seconded by Daniel Sargeant that the Motion 
be amended as follows: 
 
‘EU nationals are our family members, parents, friends and colleagues.  They care for our 
elderly and they teach our children. They are an integral part of a vibrant and thriving 
Wokingham.   

37



 

 
 

 
In the Referendum campaign, we were promised that "there will be no change for EU 
citizens already lawfully resident in the UK and [they] …will be treated no less favourably 
than they are at present”. 
 
This promise has not been honoured.  Many EU27 citizens are unaware that if Brexit goes 
ahead, they risk deportation from their homes of many years unless they are granted 
settled status.   
 
Home Office figures show that many EU nationals have not applied for Settled Status, or 
have applied but have been refused.   We don’t know how many Wokingham residents, 
perhaps elderly or vulnerable people, are unaware that they may become illegal 
immigrants.  We risk a Windrush-style scandal here in Wokingham, with families broken 
up. 
 
We also need to think of the 1.3 million British citizens who have made their homes in 
other EU countries, who may be forced to return to the UK, particularly if Brexit means 
they lose their access to healthcare.  Many of these people are elderly, and many have 
made their homes overseas because of difficulties making ends meet on their pensions.  
How many will come to Wokingham, needing assistance with social housing and other 
support? 
 
Therefore, the Council asks that Officers urgently undertake and publish a review of the 
how the Council can best mitigate the effects of Brexit on local residents and publicise 
what we intend to do and what mitigations we have already implemented including: 
a) How we can promote and assist with applications for settled status particularly for 

residents who face language or technology barriers.    
b) What we can do provide to help landlords and employers to be trained on 

immigration status, to avoid potential discrimination against EU27 nationals.  
c) How Brexit is likely to affect EU27 nationals accessing services provided by the 

Council, and steps that we can take to mitigate difficulties. 
d) The likely impact on Wokingham of British citizens returning to the UK and how we 

can best prepare for this.’ 
 
Pauline Jorgensen commented that a lot of work had already been carried out regarding 
the possible effects of Brexit.  
 
68.3 Adjournment of the meeting  
At this point in the meeting, 9.43pm, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
68.4 Continuation of Motion of 440 submitted by Rachel Bishop-Firth  
At this point in the meeting, 9.45pm, the meeting continued.  
  
The amendment to the Motion was accepted by the proposer of the original Motion. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the amended Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried. 
  
RESOLVED:  That EU nationals are our family members, parents, friends and colleagues.  
They care for our elderly and they teach our children. They are an integral part of a vibrant 
and thriving Wokingham.   
 
In the Referendum campaign, we were promised that "there will be no change for EU 

38



 

 
 

citizens already lawfully resident in the UK and [they] …will be treated no less favourably 
than they are at present”. 
 
This promise has not been honoured.  Many EU27 citizens are unaware that if Brexit goes 
ahead, they risk deportation from their homes of many years unless they are granted 
settled status.   
 
Home Office figures show that many EU nationals have not applied for Settled Status, or 
have applied but have been refused.   We don’t know how many Wokingham residents, 
perhaps elderly or vulnerable people, are unaware that they may become illegal 
immigrants.  We risk a Windrush-style scandal here in Wokingham, with families broken 
up. 
 
We also need to think of the 1.3 million British citizens who have made their homes in 
other EU countries, who may be forced to return to the UK, particularly if Brexit means 
they lose their access to healthcare.  Many of these people are elderly, and many have 
made their homes overseas because of difficulties making ends meet on their pensions.  
How many will come to Wokingham, needing assistance with social housing and other 
support? 
 
Therefore, the Council asks that Officers urgently undertake a review of the effects of 
Brexit on local residents and publicise what we intend to do and what mitigations we have 
already implemented including: 
 
a) How we promote and assist with applications for settled status particularly for 

residents who face language or technology barriers.    
b) What we provide to help landlords and employers to be trained on immigration 

status, to avoid potential discrimination against EU27 nationals.  
c) How Brexit is likely to affect EU27 nationals accessing services provided by the 

Council, and steps that we can take to mitigate difficulties. 
d) The likely impact on Wokingham of British citizens returning to the UK and how we 

can best prepare for this. 
 
68.5 Motion 441 submitted by Pauline Helliar-Symons  
 
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by Pauline Helliar-
Symons and seconded by Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey. 
 
‘On 22nd November 2018, this Council adopted a Sprinkler Policy centred on our schools.  
After work by Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue Service, the Fire 
Authority's Management Committee on 22nd July 2019 adopted a wider policy which they 
proposed be considered by each of the Berkshire Unitaries. This goes further to support 
promotion of Sprinklers in their Council areas and to put pressure on 
Central Government to legislate on Sprinklers, following the successful introduction of 
legal powers in Wales. 
 
To be specific it is proposed: 
 
That Wokingham Borough Council supports the proposals of the Royal Berkshire Fire 
Authority to extend the promotion of Sprinklers and to lobby central government to bring in 
legislation or regulations which make installations a necessary part of new builds and 
major refurbishments in the categories identified.  The policy agreed by the Council on 

39



 

 
 

22nd November 2018 regarding schools remains, but additionally: 
 
Wokingham Borough Council: 
 
a) Recognises that Sprinklers and other Automatic Fire Suppression Systems (AFSS) 

save lives, protect property, reduce the impact of fire on the environment, reduce 
interruption to business and improve safety for individuals the community in general 
and firefighters, especially in the case of schools. 

 
b) Commits to installation of sprinklers or other AFSS within its own building stock when 

planning for and constructing new buildings or as a retrofitted solution when 
undertaking major refurbishments of existing buildings where the extent of the 
refurbishment makes the fitting of sprinklers viable. 

 
c) Through the planning application or building control process, promote and support the 

installation of sprinklers or other AFSS for all new or refurbished buildings and 
particularly those that present the most significant risk to the public and firefighters. 

 
d) Supports the National Fire Chiefs Council position on sprinklers and will write to 

Central Government to express support for the creation of a legal requirement to fit 
sprinklers or AFSS in buildings.’ 

 
Upon being put to the vote, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried. 
  
RESOLVED:  That on 22nd November 2018, this Council adopted a Sprinkler 
Policy centred on our schools.  After work by Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue Service, the 
Fire Authority's Management Committee on 22nd July 2019 adopted a wider policy which 
they proposed be considered by each of the Berkshire Unitaries. This goes further to 
support promotion of Sprinklers in their Council areas and to put pressure on 
Central Government to legislate on Sprinklers, following the successful introduction of 
legal powers in Wales. 
 
To be specific it is proposed: 
 
That Wokingham Borough Council supports the proposals of the Royal Berkshire Fire 
Authority to extend the promotion of Sprinklers and to lobby central government to bring in 
legislation or regulations which make installations a necessary part of new builds and 
major refurbishments in the categories identified.  The policy agreed by the Council on 
22nd November 2018 regarding schools remains, but additionally: 
 
Wokingham Borough Council: 
 

a) Recognises that Sprinklers and other Automatic Fire Suppression Systems (AFSS) 
save lives, protect property, reduce the impact of fire on the environment, reduce 
interruption to business and improve safety for individuals the community in general 
and firefighters, especially in the case of schools. 

 
b) Commits to installation of sprinklers or other AFSS within its own building stock when 

planning for and constructing new buildings or as a retrofitted solution when 
undertaking major refurbishments of existing buildings where the extent of the 
refurbishment makes the fitting of sprinklers viable. 

 

40



 

 
 

c) Through the planning application or building control process, promote and support the 
installation of sprinklers or other AFSS for all new or refurbished buildings and 
particularly those that present the most significant risk to the public and firefighters. 
 

d) Supports the National Fire Chiefs Council position on sprinklers and will write to 
Central Government to express support for the creation of a legal requirement to fit 
sprinklers or AFSS in buildings. 

 
68.6 Continuation of the meeting  
At this point in the meeting, 10.02pm, in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.12 (m), the 
Council considered a Motion to continue the meeting beyond 10.30pm for a maximum of 
30 minutes to enable further business on the Agenda to be transacted.  The Motion was 
proposed by Prue Bray and seconded by Stephen Conway. 
  
The Mayor agreed that a recorded vote would be held. 
 

For  Against Abstain  

Rachel Bishop-Firth Keith Baker Malcolm Richards 

Shirley Boyt Parry Batth  

Prue Bray Laura Blumenthal  

Rachel Burgess Chris Bowring  

Stephen Conway Jenny Cheng  

Gary Cowan UllaKarin Clark  

Andy Croy Michael Firmager   

Richard Dolinski Guy Grandison   

Carl Doran Charlotte Haitham Taylor   

Lindsay Ferris John Halsall   

Paul Fishwick Pauline Helliar Symons   

Jim Frewin Emma Hobbs   

Maria Gee Graham Howe   

David Hare Pauline Jorgensen   

Clive Jones Dianne King   

Sarah Kerr Abdul Loyes   

Tahir Maher Charles Margetts   

Adrian Mather Ken Miall   

Andrew Mickleburgh Stuart Munro   

Imogen Shepherd-Dubey Gregor Murray   

Rachelle Shepherd-Dubey Barrie Patman   

Caroline Smith Angus Ross  

 Daniel Sargeant   

 Wayne Smith  

 Bill Soane  

 Alison Swaddle  

 
Upon being put to the vote, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be lost.  
 
68.7 Motion 442 submitted by Gary Cowan  
Due to time constraints this Motion was not considered.  
 
68.8 Motion 443 submitted by Maria Gee  
Due to time constraints this Motion was not considered.  

41



 

 
 

 

42



 

 

TITLE Changes to the Constitution 
  
FOR CONSIDERATION BY Council on 19 November 2020 
  
WARD None Specific 
  
LEAD OFFICER Andrew Moulton, Assistant Director, Governance 

 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
Reviewing the Council’s Constitution on a regular basis ensures that it is relevant and fit 
for purpose.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council agree the following changes to the Constitution, as recommended by the 
Constitution Review Working Group: 
 
1) Section 4.1.1 Policy Framework be amended as set out in Appendix 1 and explained 

in Paragraph 1 of the report; 
 
2) Section 4.2.17 Record of Attendance be amended as set out in Paragraph 2 of the 

report;  
 
3) the Virtual Meeting Protocol (an Appendix to Chapter 4) be amended as set out in 

Paragraph 3 of the report; 
 
4) the Virtual Meeting Protocol be amended as set out in Paragraph 4 of the report; 
 
5) Section 5.1.9.2 be amended as set out in Paragraph 5 of the report; 
 
6) Section 6.1.2.1 Substitutes be amended as set out in Paragraph 6 of the report; 
 
7) the Local Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix 2 to the report and explained in 

Paragraph 7 of the report) be attached as an appendix to Chapter 9 Ethics and 
Corporate Governance; 

 
8) that Section 13.3.1.1  Procurement Business Case (including options appraisal) be 

amended as set out in Paragraph 8 of the report. 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
Chapter 1.1.4 of the Council’s Constitution states that the Monitoring Officer will monitor 
and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that its aims and principles are 
given full effect. 
 
The report contains revisions to a number of areas in the Constitution which were agreed 
by the Constitution Review Working Group (CRWG) at their meeting on 26 October 2020. 
 
 

 
 

43

Agenda Item 68.



 

 

Background 

 
SECTION 4 – THE COUNCIL MEETING  
 
4.1.1 Policy Framework  
 
1. At its meeting 26 October 2020, the Constitution Review Working Group 
considered proposals to amend the Policy Framework; policies which the Council has a 
statutory duty to take to Full Council, and those which Officers feel are of significant 
importance to the Council that they should also be included.  Suggested amendments to 
the Policy Framework are set out in Appendix 1. 
 
Attendance at meetings  
 
2. The Working Group considered a proposal around the recording of attendance at 
virtual meetings.  When physical meetings were held it was custom and practice for any 
Member who was in the meeting, but not participating, to be recorded in the minutes as 
“in attendance”.  Having reviewed this it has been found that Councillors who attend a 
meeting of the Council of which they are not a member of, or participating in i.e. asking 
a Member question, representing residents, or if specifically invited, should not have 
their attendance recorded.  The following amendment is therefore proposed (bold 
italics). 
 

4.2.17  Record of Attendance 
The Chief Executive or his/her representative will keep a record of Members’ 
attendance at meetings. 
 
Only those Councillors who are members of a Committee, are asking a 
question or have been invited to participate in the meeting, will be recorded 
as being in attendance. 
 
This will also apply to meetings of the Executive.  

 
APPENDIX – PROTOCOL FOR HOLDING VIRTUAL MEETINGS  
 
Voting at Virtual Meetings 
 
3. At the previous Council meeting a number of Members inadvertently voted twice.  
The Working Group considered a number of different options as to how this could be 
addressed.   
 
The Working Group were of the opinion that if a Member realises that they have 
inadvertently voted twice, they should be encouraged to speak and indicate how they 
wished to vote.  If the Member did not speak up and the fact that they had voted twice 
was noticed by others, the Mayor or Chairman could ask how they had intended to vote. 
 
The following change to the Virtual Meeting is proposed (bold italics): 
 

7.7  Voting  
  
Unless a recorded vote is called for voting will be carried out using one of the 
following methods:  

44



 

 

  

 the Mayor/Chairman will call out the name of each committee Member 
present asking them to state whether they are “for”, “against” or wish to 
“abstain”; 

 if the Mayor/Chairman feels from the discussions that there is a 
consensus in how Members wish to vote he/she will state that they 
believe the committee wishes to vote in a particular way unless a 
Member advises them otherwise; 

 use the “hands up” feature on MS Teams.  This method will only be 
used if the majority of Members attending the meeting have access to 
and the ability to use this feature.  Prior to any vote taking place the 
Mayor/Chairman will state that this method of voting will be used and 
ask those Members in attendance, who are entitled to vote, to advise 
him/her if they are unable to use the “hands up” feature.  The vote will 
be carried out as follows: 

 
o The Mayor/Chairman will ask Members to use the “hands up” 

feature to show whether they are “for”, “against” or wish to 
“abstain”; 

o Between each of these votes Members must ensure that they 
put their “hands down” and that they don’t vote twice. If a 
Member realises that they have voted twice, they should 
speak up and indicate which way they had intended to 
vote.  If others present in the meeting become aware that a 
Member has voted twice but not spoken up, the Mayor will 
be informed and will ask the Member how they intended to 
vote; 

o Those Members who do not have the “hands up” feature will 
then be asked individually whether they are “for”, “against” or 
wish to “abstain”; 

 use other electronic voting systems if available. 
 
4. The Working Group agreed to recommend that the section of the Virtual Meeting 
Protocol relating to meetings of the Planning Committee be amended to reflect that 
following the 6 July Council meeting, the Planning Committee had undertaken 
discussions to enable public participation in virtual Planning Committee meetings.  
Public speaking was now fully integrated into the most recent meetings.  The following 
amendment is therefore proposed: 
 

6. Specific Rules Relating to Member and Public Participation at 
Planning Committee Meetings 
 
6.1 Only members of the Planning Committee and relevant Officers will be 
invited to attend Planning Committee meetings.  The proceedings of the 
committee may however be viewed via the live stream on the Council’s YouTube 
channel. Public speaking rights specific to Planning Committee meetings 
are as set out in Section 8.2.5 (Public Speaking Rights), of the Constitution.  
 
6.2 Although  If Ward Members, Town and Parish Councillors and members 
of the public will not be are unable to attend the meetings they will, in addition to 
any comments previously submitted, be able to provide a further statement to the 
committee.  This can be done by following the instructions below. 

45



 

 

 

 You must register your intention to submit a statement, which should not 
cover comments made previously, with The statement must be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5pm the 10am on the 3rd working 
day prior to the committee meeting; 
 

 Comments will be split into the following categories: Town and Parish 
Councils, Objectors, Supporters (including applicants and agents) and 
Ward Members. If you submit a statement within your category then it 
should be no more than 390 words (please note that 130 words equates 
to approximately 1 minute of speaking time). However, if more than 
one statement is received in any of the above categories, or another 
person has registered to speak at the meeting in the same category, 
you will be contacted by Democratic Services and asked to reduce your 
word limit accordingly.  Statements must be received by 10am on the 2nd 
working day prior to the committee meeting; 

 

 The statement will be read out at the meeting by a member of the 
Committee committee will be provided with copies of any statements 
received and these will be taken account of when during the 
consideration of considering the relevant planning application. 

 
SECTION 5 – THE EXECUTIVE  

 

Section 5.1.9.2  

 
5. Section 5.1.9.2 currently states that the Executive is responsible for agreeing 
Supplementary Capital or Revenue Estimates up to £500,000.  There is, however, 
nowhere in the Constitution that states what happens to supplementary estimates which 
are over £500,000.  Having consulted the Chief Finance Officer on the matter he is of 
the opinion that all supplementary estimates should be approved by the Executive.  The 
Working Group agreed with this proposal and the following amendment is therefore 
proposed for clarification purposes. 
 
5.1.9.2 

The Executive is also responsible for implementing the budget and policy 
framework agreed by the Council.  In doing so it will take decisions in accordance 
with this framework which are defined as local key decisions which: 

 
a) involve requests for Supplementary Capital or Revenue Estimates up to 

£500,000; 

 
SECTION 6 – THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
6. Currently each Group has two substitutes per Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
irrespective on how many Members it has on the Committee.  At their meeting on 26 
October, the Working Group considered a proposal that each Group be able to 
substitute any of their Members on a listed one-for one basis, for the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee.  Members felt that this should be extended to all of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the following amendment is therefore 
proposed.  

46



 

 

 
6.1.2.1  Substitutes 
Two Substitute Members from each political group shall be appointed at Annual 
Council for the forthcoming Municipal Year.  Each political group will be 
entitled to the same number of substitutes as it has Members on the 
Committee. 

 
SECTION 9 – ETHICS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
Local Code of Corporate Governance  
 
7. The Working Group considered the Local Code of Corporate Governance, which 
had been previously considered by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 29 July 2020, 
and agreed that it should be recommended that it be included as an appendix to Section 
9 Ethics and Corporate Governance. 
 
The Local Code of Corporate Governance is attached at Appendix 2.  
 
SECTION 13 PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT RULES AND PROCEDURES 
 
13.3.1.1  Procurement Business Case (including options appraisal) 
 
8. The figures contained in the table below should align with the current OJEU 
Threshold Values which are fixed for a 2-year period and subject to change on the 1st 
January of every even year (i.e. 2020, 2022 ….).  These values are set out in Appendix 
One to Section 13 and are amended as and when required without the need to go 
through CRWG and Council.   
 
In order to keep the table below up to date, without the need to go through the process 
of gaining Constitution Review Working Group and Council approval, it is proposed to 
add some additional wording to the table that will enable the figures to be amended as 
and when the OJEU Threshold Values are changed.  The figures in the table have also 
been amended to reflect the current OJEU Threshold Values 
 

 
No formal 
business 

case required 

Assistant 
Director and 

Director 
Approval 

Executive 
Approval 

(see note 1 
below) 

Full Council 
Approval 

Goods and 
Services 

< £50k £50k - £500k > £500k Annual Value 
˃£5m or TAV 

˃£25m  
(if Capital 
˃£15m) 

Schedule 3 
Services 

< £50k £50k – 
£615663k* 

> £615k663k* 

Works < £50k £50k – 
£4,551k4,733k* 

> 
£4,551k4,733k* 

*These figures are aligned to the OJEU Threshold Values (as set out in Appendix One) and will be 
amended as and when the Threshold Values change. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

47



 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19 
crisis.  It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the 
vulnerable and on its highest priorities. 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

£0 Yes Revenue 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

£0 Yes Revenue 

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

£0 Yes Revenue 

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

 

Cross-Council Implications  

None 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty 

This report has had due regard to the public sector equality duty and where applicable 

and available has included information relating to impacts upon people with protected 
characteristics and inequality. 

 

List of Background Papers 

Council’s Constitution 

 

Contact  Madeleine Shopland Service  Democratic Services 

Telephone No  Tel: 0118 974 6319 Email  
madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk 

 
 
 

48



 

 

CHAPTER 4.1 - POLICY FRAMEWORK AND FUNCTIONS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
4.1.1  Policy Framework 
The Council will approve the policy framework which comprises the following plans, 
policies and strategies: 

a) the Community Strategy  
 
b) the Corporate Plan  - amend to “the Council Plan”; 
 
c) the Children and Young People’s Plan; 
 
d) the Youth Justice Plan; 
 
e) the Local Transport Plan; 
 
f) plans which together comprise the Local Development Framework e.g. 

Core Strategy Development Plan Document; 
 
g) the Housing Strategy; 
 
h) the Licensing Policy – amend to “the Licensing Authority Policy 

Statement”; 
 
i) the Gambling Act Statement of Principles; 
 
j) Community Care Strategic Overview – delete as no formal requirement 

to produce a Community Care Strategic Overview 
 
k) the Homelessness Strategy; 
 
l) the Sustainable Environment Strategy – delete as no formal requirement 

to produce a Sustainable Environment Strategy 
 
m) the Economic Development Strategy – delete as no formal requirement 

to produce a Economic Development Strategy 
 
n) the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy–  delete as no formal 

requirement for a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy to be agreed by 
Council  

 
Additions to the Policy Framework.   
Pay Policy Statement  
Equalities Strategy 
Climate Emergency Action Plan 
Place Making Strategy 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Wokingham Borough Council 

 

Local Code of Corporate Governance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 2020 

 
 
 

51



2 
 

 

1. Delivering Good Governance 
1.1  Good governance is everyone’s responsibility. The Leader of the Council and the 

Chief Executive have a special leadership role as custodians of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  

 
1.2 Each year an Annual Governance Statement is published with the Statement of 

Accounts (as required by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015). This 
follows a review on the effectiveness of the Council’s system of internal control and 
governance. 

 
1.3  Good governance at Wokingham Borough Council is delivered and guided by the  

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 
Authority of Chief Executives (SOLACE):  Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government – Framework (2016) and the International Framework: Good 
Governance in the Public Sector (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy / International Federation of Accountants, 2014).  

 
1.4  The ‘International Framework’ defines governance as follows: “Governance 

comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for 
stakeholders are defined and achieved”. 
It also states that: 
“To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and 
individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s 
objectives while acting in the public interest at all times. 
Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, 
which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders”. 

 
1.5  The Foreword to the ‘Framework’ sets out that “Good governance requires a 

qualitative approach, not a mindless quantitative one. It requires integrity, 
objectivity, transparency, and accountability, built on a foundation of intellectual 
honesty. These principles are already embedded throughout this Framework, but it 
should be read with these fundamentals firmly in mind”. 

 
1.6  The diagram below shows how the various principles of good governance in the 

public sector relate to each other. 

52



3 
 

 

 
2. The Principles of Good Governance 
 
2.1  The Framework requires governance processes and structures to focus on the 

attainment of sustainable outcomes for the economy, society and the environment.  
 
2.2  Principles A and B are overarching principles and spread through all other principles 

C to G and ensure that the Council achieves its intended outcomes while acting in 
the public interest at all times. This requires: 
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,  
     and respecting the rule of law. 
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 
2.3  In addition to the overarching requirements for acting in the public interest in 

principles A and B, achieving good governance in the public sector also requires 
effective arrangements for: 
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and  
    environmental benefits. 
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the  
     intended outcomes. 
E. Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 
    the individuals within it. 

53



4 
 

 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong  
    public financial management. 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver  
    effective accountability. 

 
3. Monitoring and Review 
 
3.1  The Council will monitor its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in 

practice and will review them on a continuing basis to ensure that they are up to 
date. The process of review to produce the Annual Governance Statement will assess 
in more detail how the Council has performed in its adherence to the adopted 
principles of governance detailed in this code.  

 
3.2  On an annual basis, the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council will publish an 

Annual Governance Statement which will:  
 Assess how the Council has complied with this Code of Corporate Governance; 
 Provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements; 
 Provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of governance will be   
   achieved. 

 
4. Certification 

We hereby endorse our commitment to this Code of Corporate Governance and will 
ensure that the Council continues to review, evaluate and develop the Council’s 
Governance arrangements to ensure continuous improvement of the Council’s 
systems. 

     
 
Leader of the Council –  John Halsall                             Chief Executive – Susan Parsonage

54



5 
 

 

 
How the Council ensures good governance: 
 

Principle A -  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Behaving with 
integrity. 

 Ensure that members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public  
   interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation. 
 Ensure that members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the  
   organisation and its staff and that they are communicated and understood. These will build on the Seven  
   Principles of Public Life (The Nolan Principles). 
 Lead by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision 
   making and other actions. 
 Demonstrate, communicate and embed the standard operating principles or values through appropriate  
   policies and processes, which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating    
   effectively. 
 

 The Council’s values 
 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 
 The Constitution 
 Standards Committee 
 Member and Officer Codes of  
   Conduct 
 Member Declarations of Interests,  
   Register of Interests and details of  
   Gifts and Hospitality are published 
   on the Council’s website 
 Officer declarations of interest 
 Officer job descriptions and  
   Appraisals 
 Member and Officer induction  
   and training 
 Whistleblowing and counter-fraud  
   arrangements  
  

Demonstrating 
strong 
commitment to 
ethical values. 

 Seek to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical standards and performance. 
 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical values and ensure they permeate all aspects of the  
   organisation’s culture and operation. 
 Develop and maintain robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values. 
 Ensure that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity  
   and in compliance with ethical standards expected by the organisation. 

 

 The Council’s values 
 The Constitution 
 Standards Committee 
 Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
 Regulatory and other Committees 
 Codes of Conduct 
 Member and Officer induction  
   and training 
 Member Declarations of Interests,  
   Register of Interests and details of  

55



6 
 

 

   Gifts and Hospitality are published 
   on the Council’s website 
 Officer declarations of interest 
 Equality Policy / BAME Group 
 Procurement and Contract rules,  
   and procedures 
 
 

Respecting the 
rule of law. 

 Ensure that members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as 
   adhering to relevant laws and regulations. 
 Create the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders, and members, are   
   able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements. 
 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other  
   Stakeholders. 
 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively. 
 Ensure that corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively. 

 

 Legal and finance senior officers  
   review reports going for Member 
   decision making. 
 Project Managers have  
   responsibility to secure legal and  
   finance advice for projects 
 Corporate complaints,  
   compliments and monitoring  
   procedures. 
 Ombudsman process 
 Companies – Compliance with  
   Companies Act and Directors  
   duties 
 Head of Paid Service post / advice 
 S151 officer post / advice 
 Monitoring Officer post / advice 
 The Constitution  
 Roles, responsibilities and  
   competencies 
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
 Whistleblowing Policy 
 Data Protection Policy 

 

 
 
 
 

56



7 
 

 

Principle B -  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by:  

Openness.  Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation’s  
   commitment to openness.  
 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes.  
 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to  
   Stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and considerations used. In due course,  
   ensure that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear.  
 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective  
   interventions / courses of action.  

 

 The Council’s values 
 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 
 Communication Strategy / Policy 
 WBC website 
 Committee meetings  
   documentation, standard report  
   templates and minutes  
 Call-in periods for Executive  
   decisions 
 Overview & Scrutiny panels 
 Forward Plan 
 Publication Scheme 
 Consultation Policy, webpage and  
   e-Petitions  
 Transparency data published 
 Freedom of Information processes 
 HR Policies and procedures 
 Equality Framework and Equality  
   Impact Assessments 
 

Engaging 
stakeholders 
effectively, 
including 
individual 
citizens and 
service users. 
 
 

 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 
   communities, individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other)  
   provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes.  
 Ensure that communication methods are effective and that members and officers are clear about their  
   roles with regard to community engagement.  
 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users and  
   organisations of different backgrounds including reference to future needs.  
 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how views have been taken into  
   account.  
 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure  
   inclusivity  
 Take account of the impact of decisions on future generations of tax payers and service users. 

 Consultation Policy, webpage and  
   e-Petitions 
 Corporate complaints,  
   compliments and monitoring  
   procedures  
 Customer Service Strategy 
 Public attendance at meetings and 
   web stream 
 Annual Budget consultation  
 Wokingham Borough News  
   surveys 

57



8 
 

 

Engaging 
comprehensively 
with 
institutional 
stakeholders.  
 

 Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended  
   outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and  
   sustainably.  
 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and  
   outcomes achieved more effectively. 
 Ensure that partnerships are based on:  

- trust;  
- a shared commitment to change;  
- a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners; and, 

- that the added value of partnership working is explicit. 

 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 
 Local Enterprise Partnership  
   Arrangements 
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 Joint Health and Wellbeing  
   Strategy 
  Community Safety Partnership 
  Berkshire West Children’s 
    Safeguarding partnership 
 Wokingham Integrated  
   Partnership 
 Public Protection Partnership  
 

 

Principle C -  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Defining 
outcomes. 

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended  
   outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s  
   overall strategy, planning and other decisions.  
 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could  
   be immediately or over the course of a year or longer.  
 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available.  
 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes.  
 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best  
   use of the resources available. 

 

 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 
 Directorate and Service Plans 
 Medium Term Financial Plan 
 Capital Strategy 
 Statement of Accounts 
 Corporate Risk Register and  
   project risk assessments 
 Performance Framework and  
   reporting to Officers and  
   Members 
 

Sustainable 
economic, 
social, and 
environmental 
benefits. 

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies and plans when 
   taking decisions about service provision.  
 Take a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently  
   where there are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors  
   such as the political cycle or financial constraints.  
 Determine the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the  

 Standard templates for Business  
   Cases and Executive papers 
 MTFP, Capital and Investment  
   Strategies 
 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 

58



9 
 

 

   various economic, social and environmental benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to  
   ensure appropriate trade-offs.  
 Ensure fair and equal access to services. 
 

 Directorate and Service Plans 
 Adults social care strategies and  
   policies  
 Children’s social care strategies  
   and policies. 
 Climate emergency objectives. 
 Air Quality Management Group 
 Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 Development and Planning  
   policies 
 Housing policies 
 Equality Framework and Equality  
   Impact Assessments 
 

 

Principle D -   Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Determining 
interventions. 

 Ensure that decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how  
   intended outcomes would be achieved and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved  
   however services are provided. 
 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or  
   where services are no longer required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources  
   available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts. 
 

 Standard templates for Business  
   Cases and Executive papers 
 Consultation Policy, webpage and  
   e-Petitions 
 Corporate complaints,  
   compliments and monitoring  
   procedures. 
  Annual Budget consultation 
 
 

Planning 
interventions. 

 Establish and implement robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans,  
   priorities and targets.  
 Engage with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action  
   should be planned and delivered.  
 Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when working collaboratively, including shared risks.  
 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering goods and services can  
   be adapted to changing circumstances.  
 Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify  

 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 
 Directorate and Service Plans 
 MTFP, Capital and Investment  
   Strategies. 
 Consultation Policy, webpage and  
   e-Petitions 
 Performance Framework and  

59



10 
 

 

   how the performance of services and projects is to be measured.  
 Ensure that capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly.  
 Prepare budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan.  
 Inform medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital  
   expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy. 
 

   reporting to Officers and  
   Members 
 Corporate and service risk  
   registers 
 Project management policies and 
   guidance 
 

Optimising 
achievement of 
intended 
outcomes. 
 

 Ensure that the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and  
   other resource constraints.  
 Ensure that the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the  
   medium and longer term.  
 Ensure that the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant  
   delivery issues or responses to changes in the external environment that may arise during the budgetary  
   period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage.  
 Ensure that  the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning (The Public  
   Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit to the community…. over and  
   above the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”. 

 

 MTFP, Capital and Investment  
   Strategies 
 Capital and revenue monitoring  
   and reporting to officers and  
   Members 
 Annual budget consultation 
 Consultation Policy, webpage and  
   e-Petitions 
 Resident surveys 
 

 

Principle E -   Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Developing the 
entity’s 
capacity. 

 Review operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing  
   effectiveness. 
 Improve resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other  
   options in order to determine how resources are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved  
   effectively and efficiently. 
 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved 
 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources. 

 

 The Community Vison and  
   Corporate Delivery Plan 

 Asset Management Plan 
 Highways Asset Management  
   Strategy 
 Benchmarking within Directorate  
   and Service plans 
 Local Enterprise Partnership  
   Arrangements 
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 Joint Health and Wellbeing  
   Strategy 
  Community Safety Partnership 
  Berkshire West Children’s 

60



11 
 

 

    Safeguarding partnership 
 Wokingham Integrated  
   Partnership 
 Public Protection Partnership  
 Shared Services arrangements 
 Workforce plan 
 

Developing the 
entity’s 
leadership and 
the capability 
of individuals 
within the 
entity. 

 Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding their  
   respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is  
   maintained.  
 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the  
   collective decision making of the governing body.  
 Ensure that the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a  
   structure whereby the chief executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of  
   services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for each other’s  
   authority.  
 Develop the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve effective leadership and to enable  
   the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic,  
   political and environmental changes and risks by:  

- Ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that 
ongoing training and development matching individual and organisational requirements is available 
and encouraged;  

- Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil 
their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a 
continuing basis;  

- Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including 
lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and external.  

 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.  
 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive  
   feedback from peer review and inspections.  
 Hold staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development  
   needs.  
 Ensure that arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support  
   individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 
 

 Member / officer protocol 
 Constitution including delegated  
   powers 
 Training plans for officers and 
   Members 
 Standard induction and training  
   for both officers and Members 
 Mandatory e-learning modules 
 Intranet guidance, policies and  
   procedures 
 Corporate recruitment processes  
   with job profiles and  
   competencies 
 Appraisals and 121s 
 Corporate staff surveys 
 Apprenticeship scheme 
 Coaching Cadre 
 Peer Reviews – council and service  
   Specific 
 Companies – Companies Act,  
   Articles of Association, Directors  
   duties 
 Health and Wellbeing policies,   
   guidance and events 
  
 
 

 

61



12 
 

 

 

Principle F -  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management.  
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Managing risk.  Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects  
   of decision making. 
 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensuring that they are working  
   effectively. 
 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated. 
 

 Risk Management Strategy 
 Corporate Risk Register 
 Directorate and Service risk  
   Registers 
 Standard templates for Executive  
   decision making  
 Audit Committee 
 Overview & Scrutiny panels 
 Audit & Investigation service 
 

Managing 
performance. 

 Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post  
   implementation review  
 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and  
   risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and environmental position and outlook.  
 Ensure that an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which provides constructive challenge and  
   debate on policies and objectives before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the  
   organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible.  
 Provide members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress  
   towards outcome achievement.  
 Ensure that there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation  
   reporting (e.g. financial statements). 

 

 Performance reporting framework 
   to officers and Members 
 Standard templates for Executive  
   decision making  
 Overview & Scrutiny panels and  
   quarterly performance reporting  
   to them 
 Directorate and Service plans 
 MTFP 
 Capital and revenue budget  
   Monitoring 
 Statement of Accounts 
 Project monitoring 
 Internal and External Audit reports 
 Peer reviews / inspections 
 

Robust internal 
control. 
 
 

 Align the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives.  
 Evaluate and monitor risk management and internal control on a regular basis.  
 Ensure that effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place.  
 Ensure that additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of  
   governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor.  
 Ensure an audit committee which is independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body:  

 Audit & Investigation annual 
   plan 
 External Audit 
 Audit Committee 
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
 Whistleblowing Policy 

62



13 
 

 

- Provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and 
maintaining an effective control environment; and, 

- That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon.  

 

 Anti-Money Laundering Policy 
 Financial Procedure Rules,  
   Regulations and Contract Standing 
   Orders 
 Chief Audit Executive annual  
   report 
 Annual Governance Statement 
 Risk Management Strategy and  
   Policy 
 

Strong public 
financial 
management. 
 

 Ensure that financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term  
   financial and operational performance. 
 Ensure that well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control,  
   including management of financial risks and controls. 

 MTFP 
 Financial Regulations / Contract  
   Standing Orders 
 Capital and revenue reporting to  
   officers and Members 
 Standard templates for Executive  
   decision making 
 Annual budget process 
 
 

Managing data 
 

 Ensure that effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data,  
   including processes to safeguard personal data. 
 Ensure that effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other  
   bodies. 
 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance  
   monitoring. 
 

 Information Security and  
   Acceptable Use of ICT Policy 
 Data Protection / GDPR  
   Guidelines 
 Privacy Notices 
 Mandatory GDPR e-learning 
 Data sharing agreements with 
   Partners 
 E-mail security classification  
 Freedom of Information policy 
 Records Retention guidance 
 Internal Audit 
 Caldicott Guardians 
 

 
 

63



14 
 

 

 

Principle G -   Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability. 
Supporting 
Principles 

To embed the behaviour and actions that demonstrate good governance, the council is 
committed to: 

This is demonstrated by: 

Implementing 
good practices 
in transparency. 

 Write and communicate reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and  
   understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and  
   interrogate. 
 Strike a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and  
   enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to understand. 

 

 Standard templates for public  
   reports 
 Committee Agendas, papers and  
   minutes published 
 Forward Plan 
 Publication Scheme 
 Only using Part 2 reporting for the  
   purposes intended 
 Website streaming of meetings  
   and public questions  
 Transparency Data published 
 Annual Governance Statement 
 Companies – Companies House  
   reporting and submissions 
 

Implementing 
good practices 
in reporting. 

 Report at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of resources to stakeholders in  
   a timely and understandable way.  
 Ensure that members and senior management own the results reported.  
 Ensure that robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this  
   framework have been applied and publishing the results on this assessment, including an action plan for  
   improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement).  
 Ensure that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate.  
 Ensure the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a  
   consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.  

 

 Statement of Accounts 
 Annual Governance Statement  
   and improvement plan 
 Annual External Audit report and  
   Letter 
 

Assurance and 
effective 
accountability. 
 
 

 Ensure that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon. 
 Ensure that an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in place, providing  
   assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon. 
 Welcome peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing  
   recommendations. 
 Gain assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and that this is evidenced  
   in the Annual Governance Statement. 

 External Audit reporting to Audit  
   Committee 
 Internal Audit reporting to Audit  
   Committee 
 Peer reviews / inspections  
   published results and monitoring  
   of outcomes 

64



15 
 

 

 Ensure that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider  
   public accountability has been recognised and met. 

 Overview & Scrutiny panels 
 Partnerships Governance  
   Protocol 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	62. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	68. Changes to the Constitution
	Appendix 1 Policy Framework
	Appendix 2 Local Code of Corporate Governance


